\/ scnn
NOTICE/AGENDA

STATE COUNCIL ON DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITIES
COUNCIL MEETING

This meeting is being held via teleconference within the meaning of Government Code section
11123.2. Members may be physically present at one or more teleconference locations. There may
be members of the public body who are participating in today’s meeting that were granted a
reasonable accommodation per the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA). Accessible formats of
all agenda and materials can be found online at www.scdd.ca.gov

MEETING DETAILS:

TELECONFERENCE LOCATION: JOIN BY TELECONFERENCE:

SCDD HQ OFFICE CALL IN NUMBER: (888)-475-4499 or
3831 North Freeway Blvd., #125 (877) 853-5257

Sacramento, CA 95834 MEETING ID: 816 4094 0058

JOIN BY ZOOM:
https://bit.ly/SCDDCouncilNov2024
MEETING ID: 816 4094 0058
PASSCODE: 312507

DATE: November 19, 2024

MEETING TIME: 10:30 AM - 3:30 PM

COUNCIL CHAIR: Wesley Witherspoon

ltem 1. CALL TO ORDER

Item 2. ESTABLISH QUORUM


https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billTextClient.xhtml?bill_id=202320240SB544
http://www.scdd.ca.gov/
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81640940058?pwd=6waBy0NU0TfGsB1k0hbhyywthFhCBN.1

[tem 3.

Item 4.

[tem 5.

[tem 6.

ltem 7.

[tem 8.

[tem 9.

[tem 10.

ltem 11.

WELCOME AND INTRODUCTIONS
SWEARING IN NEW COUNCILMEMBER Page 4

PUBLIC COMMENTS Page 5

This item is for members of the public to provide comments and/or present information
to this body on matters not listed on the agenda.There will be up to 20 minutes
allocated to hear from the public with each person allotted up to 3 minutes to comment.

Additionally, there will be up to 10 minutes allocated to hear from the public on each
Council agenda item, with each person allotted up to 1 minute to comment.

HONORING THE OUTGOING CHAIR AND VICE CHAIR Page 6
Aaron Carruthers, Executive Director

2025-2026 CHAIR AND VICE CHAIR ELECTIONS vi E Page 7
APPROVAL OF SEPTEMBER 2024 MINUTES vi & Page 14
All

CHAIR REPORT AND COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENT Page 26

Wesley Witherspoon, Council Chair

A. Legislative and Public Policy Committee (LPPC)
B. Executive Committee

C. State Plan Committee (SPC)

D. Self-Advocates Advisory Committee (SAAC)

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR REPORT & STAFF REPORTS Page 29
Aaron Carruthers, Executive Director

A. Executive Director Report

B. Chief Deputy Director

C. Policy and Public Affairs Report
D. CRA/VAS Update Report

E. QA Project Update Report

2025 POLICY PLANNING Page 40
Aaron Carruthers, Executive Director

A. Legislative Platform
B. 2024 Bill Idea Contest

C. Adopt 2025 Policy Priorities VMTE



Item 12. STATE PLAN UPDATES Page 86
Rihana Ahmad, Manager - HQ Operations & State Plan
Michael Ellis, State Plan Committee Chair

A. 2024 Program Performance Report (PPR) VMTE
A. Cycle 47 Tribal Health update
B. 2027 - 2031 State Plan Development Process Update

Item 13. 2025 COUNCIL AND COMMITTEE MEETING DATES AND Page 87
ADJOURNMENT
The next Council meeting will be in person on January 21, 2025.

Accessibility:

Pursuant to Government Code Sections 11123.1 and 11125(f), individuals with disabilities who
require accessible alternative formats of the agenda and related meeting materials and/or
auxiliary aids/services to participate in this meeting should contact Yaritza Sanchez at (916)-207-
2856 or yaritza.sanchez@scdd.ca.gov. Please provide at least 3 business days prior to the
meeting to allow adequate time to respond to all requests.

All times indicated and the order of business are approximate and subject to change.


mailto:yaritza.sanchez@scdd.ca.gov

NOVEMBER 19, 2024

AGENDA ITEM 4.
INFORMATION ITEM

STATE COUNCIL ON DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITIES

Swearing in of New Councilmember

Executive Director Aaron Carruthers will swear in a new Councilmember.



NOVEMBER 19, 2024

AGENDA ITEM 5.
INFORMATION ITEM

STATE COUNCIL ON DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITIES

Public Comments

This item is for members of the public to provide comments and/or present
information to this body on matters not listed on the agenda. There will be up to
20 minutes allocated to hear from the public with each person allotted up to 3
minutes to comment.

Separately, there will be up to 10 minutes allocated to hear from the public on
each Council agenda item, with each person allotted up to 1 minute to
comment.



NOVEMBER 19, 2024

AGENDA ITEM 6.
INFORMATION ITEM

STATE COUNCIL ON DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITIES
Honoring the Outgoing Chair and Vice Chair

Councilmembers will honor outgoing Chair Wesley Witherspoon and Vice
Chair Lee Bycel and highlight their years of service.



NOVEMBER 19, 2024

AGENDA ITEM 7.
VOTE ITEM

STATE COUNCIL ON DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITIES
2025-2026 Chair and Vice Chair Elections

Election of Council officers occurs once every two years during the last Council
meeting of the appropriate calendar year unless a vacancy occurs. Council
officers are elected by a simple majority vote and will serve from January 2024
through December 2025.

On September 24, 2024, the Council began the process of electing a new
Chair and Vice-Chair by asking members for nominations for both Chair and
Vice-Chair. At the November 19" Council meeting, members will vote for their
next Chair and Vice-Chair. Below are the eligible members that were
nominated and/or expressed interest in serving as Council Chair and/or Vice-
Chair.

Council Chair: Council Vice Chair:
Harold Fujita (F.A) Harold Ashe (F.A)
Julie Gaona (S.A) Harold Fujita (F.A)
Alex Reyes (S.A) Julie Gaona (S.A)

Alex Reyes (S.A)

These Councilmembers have submitted candidate statements, which are
included in the packet for review prior to the meeting. Candidates will be given
the opportunity to offer three-minute speeches at the meeting. Time
accommodations are given to any candidate who needs them.

Attachments
Detail Sheet on 2024 Officer Elections
Candidate Statements

Action Recommended
Elect Council Chair and Vice-Chair to serve from January 2024 through
December 2025.



COUNCIL MEETING DETAIL SHEET
ISSUE: 2024 Officer Elections

SUMMARY: Per its bylaws, the State Council on Developmental

Disabilities (Council) has two officers, which are a Chair and Vice-Chair.
The Council holds elections for these officers every two years during the
last Council meeting of the appropriate calendar year. The Council begins
the election process by taking nominations from all members at the second
to last meeting of an election year. The election shall be held during the last
meeting of the appropriate calendar year.

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: On September 24, 2024, the Council
began the process of electing a new Chair and Vice-Chair by asking
members for nominations for both Chair and Vice-Chair. At that meeting,
the Council nominated five members for Chair and six members for Vice-
Chair. Since that meeting two nominees withdrew from consideration for
Chair and two members nominees withdrew from consideration for Vice-
Chair. The remaining nominated members submitted a candidate
statement that explains why they wish to serve as an officer. The
completed statements are included in the November Council meeting
packet. At the November 19th Council meeting, members will vote for their
next Chair and Vice-Chair. On January 1, 2025, the new officers will begin
serving.

WHO CAN BE AN OFFICER?

Only members appointed to a self or family advocate seat are eligible to
hold these positions. See Welfare and Institutions Code Section 4521(b)(1)
for information on membership.

The Chair and Vice-Chair will be held by one self-advocate and one family
advocate. See page 9 Article VII, Section 2 of the Council Bylaws.

WHO CANNOT SERVE?
A self or family advocate member with less than one year left on their
second term. An agency or organizational representative.

VOTING PROCEDURE:
— Nominations for Chair and Vice Chair were received during the
September Council meeting.



https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=WIC&sectionNum=4521.
https://scdd.ca.gov/wp-content/uploads/sites/33/2023/04/Bylaws-with-table-1.pdf

— Council officers shall be elected by a simple majority vote.

— If no nominee is elected by a majority vote, the Council will hold a run-off
election between the nominees who received the two highest number of
votes. The Council may waive this run-off requirement with a majority
vote to waive.

Term of Office:

— The Chairperson and Vice-Chairperson shall be elected for a term of two
years. Individuals may be elected to these positions for no more than
two consecutive terms. Their term of office shall begin the first day of the
new calendar year.

WHAT ARE THE DUTIES OF THE CHAIR?

Along with the typical duties of all Councilmembers, the Chair

— Leads all Council meetings.

— Sets the agenda for Council meetings.

— Appoints committee chairpersons and members to all Council
committees.

— Appoints Council representatives in relation to other agencies and
consumer groups.

— Represents the Council as needed.

WHAT ARE THE DUTIES OF THE VICE-CHAIR?

Along with the typical duties of all Councilmembers, the Vice-Chair

— Performs all the duties of the Chair if the Chair is absent or upon request
of the Chair.

— Serves as Chair of the Executive Committee.

— Serves as the Council’s Parliamentarian.

— Serve as the Chair of the Executive Committee.

WHAT WILL HAPPEN NEXT?

Nominated members completed a candidate statement form that explains
why they wish to serve as an officer. The completed forms will be included
in the November Council meeting packet. At the November 19" Council
meeting members will vote for their next Chair and Vice-Chair. On January
1, 2025, the new officers will begin serving.

PREPARED: November 06, 2024, by Aaron Carruthers, Executive Director
and Yaritza Sanchez, Assistant to the Executive Director



SCDD 2025 Chair and Vice Chair Candidate Statement

NAME: Harold Fujita

Position you are running for? Select all that apply.
v' Chair
v Vice-Chair

I Why are you interested in being Council Chair/Vice-Chair?
As the parent of two children on the spectrum who are non-verbal and have significant
behavioral challenges, | learned early how to press for and obtain services from their
school districts. The system failed my oldest son after he aged out of his academic
program and he eventually ended up at a Developmental Center. Today, he lives in a
group home close to me.

I
Last year, | retired after a career dedicated to serving the residents of the second largest
city in the nation. Nearly three decades of experience as a manager in municipal |
government has given me an understanding of the forces and realities that impact SCDD.

I If elected, what would your priorities for the Council be? I

The challenges our community faces today are great and many and include |

unemployment/underemployment, a subminimum wage, lack of affordable housing,
resistance to self-determination, too few qualified service providers, etc. While there has
been progress in improving the lives of people living with an 1/DD, far too much of that
progress has been incremental. Substantive systemic improvements to meet current
needs as well as anticipate future needs (such as building the capacity to serve the
growing number of elderly living with an |/DD) are sorely needed.

What leadership experience do you have as Chair or Vice Chair on this or another
council or committee?

| currently chair the Administrative Committee. Prior to my appointment to SCDD, |
chaired the Los Angeles Regional Advisory Committee (LA RAC).

10



SCDD 2025 Chair and Vice Chair Candidate Statement

NAME: Julie Gaona

Position you are running for? Select all that apply.
v' Chair
v Vice-Chair

I Why are you interested in being Council Chair/Vice-Chair?
So far, I've been on the state council for about two years and I've learned a lot more
than | thought | would so far. | would like to have the opportunity to learn more and
what goes on in other communities other than Los Angeles. | want to share my
knowledge and experience that | have learned already working with the developmental
disabled that i've assisted with people becoming more productive and independent such
as housing, transportation, regional center services and other generic resources.

I If elected, what would your priorities for the Council be? I
My priorities for the council would be to support any services that makes our life more |

independent. An example of one right now would be the fair wages for developmental
people who have jobs. | once worked in my life and | really enjoyed my job. | got paid a
decent living wage at the time and | want that to continue for everyone. Another thing
im very passionate about is the marriage penalty. Im currently married so this does
affect me and my husband. People without disabilities are allowed to keep their money,
why shouldnt we? People get married for many different reasons. Some want kids,
religious reasons, or just a partner in thier life that they can love.

What leadership experience do you have as Chair or Vice Chair on this or another
council or committee?

I've been vice chair of Latterman regional Center before | was chair for the council. | was
vice chair for the state wide self advocacy network. | was chair of the self advocacy
board of los angeles county. | was also chair for the employment first committee. My
experience in each of these committees taught me a little something different which end
up being usefull in my life. These are just to name a few.

11



SCDD 2025 Chair and Vice Chair Candidate Statement

NAME: Alejandro Alex Reyes

Position you are running for? Select all that apply.
v' Chair
v Vice-Chair

I Why are you interested in being Council Chair/Vice-Chair?
01 | honestly would be very intrested in the postion | was nominated since | want to do
the best of my ability and a sucssessful councilman to SCDD

02 If elected to either postion | will work very closely with the Executive Director etc on
all matter involved with SCDD so we can all be on the same page and have an honest and
open communication with the council etc

What leadership experience do you have as Chair or Vice Chair on this or another
council or committee?

03 Im currently the comitee member of the Fremont Unified School District / SEIU10218
our job was to elect a new board since the previous board was about to expire

I If elected, what would your priorities for the Council be? I

We made sure that everyone got their ballots and If anyone had questions they can
reach out to me directly so communication is key

12



SCDD 2025 Chair and Vice Chair Candidate Statement

NAME: Harold L. Ashe, Council Member

Position you are running for? Select all that apply.

O Chair
v Vice-Chair

Why are you interested in being Council Chair/Vice-Chair?

The position of Vice-Chair is a Council leadership position which requires patience,
organization, and an understanding of the principles governing the SCDD. My intent is
to facilitate meetings and committees as Vice-Chair to ensure continuity between
members and their Council committees.

If elected, what would your priorities for the Council be?

If elected and successfully installed, my highest priority will be to continue the
substantive work on behalf of the Council to further our mission statement on behalf
of our state’s constituency. My additional priority will be to create an atmosphere
where all ideas and suggestions are considered and respected. | will work closely and
collaboratively with the SCDD Headquarters staff to continue the traditions which
have resulted in successful legislation which has improved the quality of life for the
angels we serve.

What leadership experience do you have as Chair or Vice Chair on this or another
council or committee?

| seek the Vice-Chair position in part due to my experience as Chair for the LPPC,
Committee member of the Executive, SAAC member, and member of Work Group 1
Advisory Committee for the Master plan.

13



NOVEMBER 19, 2024

AGENDA ITEM 8.
ACTION ITEM

STATE COUNCIL ON DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITIES
Approval of September 2024 Minutes

The draft minutes from the September 24, 2024, Council meeting have been
included in the packet for review. Councilmembers will vote on whether to
approve the minutes.

Attachment
September Council Meeting Minutes

Action Recommended
Approve the September 2024 Council meeting minutes.

14



/$¢bb

Members Attending
Alex Reyes (S.A))
Andy Imparato (DRC)

Aubyn Stahmer (UCEDD)
Blake Warner (UCEDD)

Cathay Liu (F.A))

Christine Mizarian (UCEDD)

Debra Cooper (CHHS)
Harold Ashe (F.A.)
Harold Fujita (F.A.)
Julie Gaona (S.A))
Jessica Brown (F.A.)
Jessica Grove (DOR)

Joseph Billingsley (DHCS)

Joyce McNair (F.A.)
Julie Neward (F.A)
Julio Garnica (S.A.)
Kara Ponton (S.A.)
Lee Bycel (F.A))
Lupe Rodriguez (F.A)
Mark Beckley (CDA)
Michael Ellis (F.A.)
Nestor Nieves (S.A.)
Nicole Adler (S.A)
Nick Wavrin (CDE)
Rosanna Ryan (S.A.)
Sonia Jones (S.A))
Viviana Barnwell (F.A.)

Wesley Witherspoon (S.A.)

1. CALL TO ORDER

DRAFT

Council Meeting Minutes
September 24, 2024

Members Absent
Brian Winfield (DDS)
Eric Ybarra (S.A.)

Others Attending
Aaron Carruthers
Barbara Imle

Beth Hurn

Brian Hoang
Carmela Garnica
Chris Arroyo
Christine Tolbert
Charles Nguyen
David Grady
Debra Adler
Debra Ponton
Dena Hernandez
Elsa Casper
Janet Fernandez
Julie Eby-McKenzie
Ken DaRosa

Kris Wallman
Lynn Villoria
Michelle Cave
Pete Cervinka
Renee Bauer
Rihana Ahmad
Robin Maitino-Erben
Rondale Holloway

Others Attending (cont)

Scarlett VonThenen
Sheraden Nicholau
Tamara Cannon
Thuy Le

Veronica Bravo
Victor Duron
Yaritza Sanchez
Yolanda Cruz

Chair Wesley Witherspoon called the meeting to order at 10:36 A.M.

Legend:

SA = Self-Advocate
FA = Family Advocate

N/A = not available Page 1
DNP = Did Not Participate

15



2. ESTABLISH QUORUM
A quorum was established.

3. WELCOME/INTRODUCTIONS
Chair Witherspoon welcomed Acting Director Pete Cervinka to outline his
vision and goals for the Department of Developmental Services (DDS).
Some of his priorities included enhancing trust and transparency,
ensuring fiscal sustainability during ongoing budget constraints, and
improving employment opportunities within the Department for individuals
with lived experiences of intellectual and developmental disabilities. He
also highlighted a long-term initiative to replace the Department’s
outdated IT infrastructure with an integrated Client Electronic Records
Management System and Uniform Financial System. He noted that this
upgrade would improve data accuracy, accessibility, and support for both
clients and service providers. Lastly, he expressed gratitude for the
opportunity to present his vision and invited ongoing engagement with the
Council to further the Department’s mission.

Debra Adler provided a public comment on this item. She thanked Acting
Director Cervinka for engaging with the Council and public. She noted
that his openness and availability were much appreciated, as they
reflected a strong commitment to transparency.

Members and others in attendance introduced themselves.

4. PUBLIC COMMENTS
Debra Adler provided a public comment on this item. She began by noting
that Lyft took quick action to address an issue when a driver refused to
allow Councilmember Adler’s service dog. She relayed that it showed the
company’s commitment to accessibility and inclusion. Furthermore, she
cited challenges within the Medi-Cal system, particularly regarding access
to dental care. She detailed the challenges in securing timely dental
appointments, with only one dentist within a ten-mile radius accepting
Medi-Cal, which resulted in year-long appointment delays. She also
mentioned how multiple providers stopped accepting Medi-Cal, which led
her to Western Dental. She described the facility as understaffed, with
long waits and insufficient access to care. She emphasized the financial
strain on providers, explaining that low reimbursement rates deter dentists
from accepting Medi-Cal patients, which increases access issues.

Legend:
SA = Self-Advocate N/A = not available Page 2
FA = Family Advocate DNP = Did Not Participate

16



Carmela Garnica also provided a public comment that echoed Debra
Adler’'s statements regarding challenges faced by Medi-Cal recipients,
especially in rural areas. She pointed out that the challenges described by
Debra were part of a broader, systemic issue that has persisted for over
twenty years. She recounted traveling extensively to access medical care,
a common experience for many living in rural areas. She also noted
recent efforts by the Inland Empire Health Plan (IEHP) to expand into her
community, indicating a move towards addressing these healthcare
service gaps. She emphasized the importance of community involvement
in legislative advocacy to effect change.

. APPROVAL OF JULY 2024 MINUTES

Action 1

It was moved/seconded (Fujita [F.A]/ Reyes [S.A.]) and carried to approve
the July 2024 meeting minutes as presented by unanimous acclimation.
(See last page for a voting record of members present)

. CHAIR REPORT AND COMMITTEE REPORTS

Chair Witherspoon highlighted several recent actions approved by the
Executive Committee in August, including updates on Cycle 47 grant
funding. Originally, the highest-scoring projects on plain language and
social isolation were funded for a total of $283,000. The State Plan
Committee identified Tribal Health as a critical need, prompting the
Administrative Committee to recommend an increase in funding to
support an additional request for proposal (RFP) in this area. The
Executive Committee approved a one-time allocation of $108,000 in prior-
year unexpended funds. This amount added to the amount unspent from
the prior grant offering, it raises the total for the Community Grants/Other
Projects line item to $408,000. This allowed the addition of a Tribal
Health-focused RFP. Additionally, he shared his experience attending the
annual NACDD Conference in Washington, D.C., where he presented on
healthy relationships and sexuality. Lastly, he and Councilmembers Liz
Laugeson, Julie Gaona, and Nestor Nieves, along with the Executive
Director, met with LA28 representatives to provide guidance on
accessibility for the 2028 Olympics.

SCDD committee reports were provided in the meeting packet. Chair
Witherspoon asked that members read through these reports when they
are able. The committee reports can be accessed online at
https://scdd.ca.gov/councilmeetings/.

Legend:
SA = Self-Advocate N/A = not available Page 3
FA = Family Advocate DNP = Did Not Participate

17


https://scdd.ca.gov/councilmeetings/

7. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR REPORT AND STAFF REPORTS
The Executive Director provided an advocacy update, focusing on the
status of key bills supported by the Council. He outlined several bills
under the health category that were still pending, including SB 1001,
which aimed to protect individuals with intellectual and developmental
disabilities (IDD) from the death penalty; SB 1197 on respite services for
foster youth; SB 1281 to improve access to the Self-Determination
Program; and SB 1384 on power wheelchair repair. In the area of
housing, SB 37 proposed a rent subsidy for older Californians with
disabilities, while AB 3291, addressing caregiver succession and
homelessness prevention, had already been signed into law. Under the
work category, AB 1147, which would enhance Regional Center
transparency, and AB 1885, which would classify 9 units as full time for
students with disabilities, were still awaiting action. The Executive Director
commended Policy Analyst Veronica Bravo for her work on these
advocacy efforts. Additionally, the Governor vetoed two Council-
supported bills: AB 1977, regarding autism coverage recertification, and
SB 1443, which would have formally named SCDD to the Interagency
Council on Homelessness. He also shared that the Governor secured $2
million in funding for an inclusive college project, which was a Council
sponsored initiative. The California Department of Education released an
RFP for the grant.

Moreover, he provided an update on the annual “There Should Be a Law”
contest, which invites community suggestions for potential legislation and
ends on September 30th. This initiative has been a crucial tool for
identifying legislative priorities based on community input. This feedback
has historically gained attention from the legislature, often influencing bill
proposals during the legislative “shopping season” from December to
February. The Executive Director also noted the academic value of the
contest findings, mentioning UCLA'’s role in transforming these insights
into an academic piece presented at conferences and bridging community
and academic efforts in shaping public policy. In addition, he mentioned
his experience at the national conference in Washington, D.C., where he
showcased the Council’s accomplishments. He also provided an update
on a recent White House meeting, where he presented the Council’s
achievements, including training initiatives, policy impacts, and priorities
like employment and ending subminimum wage.

Legend:
SA = Self-Advocate N/A = not available Page 4
FA = Family Advocate DNP = Did Not Participate

18



The Executive Director shared details on the Council’s recent involvement
with the LA 2028 Olympics planning, focusing on recommendations to
improve inclusivity for individuals with disabilities and neurodivergence.
Councilmembers advised on utilizing universal design, ensuring
accessible facilities, and preparing for behavioral and emergency
responses among attendees. They also recommended training for all
Olympics staff on disability etiquette and creating accessible
environments in and around the games.

In other updates, Executive Director Carruthers highlighted the Council’s
ongoing involvement in National Disability Employment Awareness
Month, detailing planned activities including a virtual employment webinar
hosted by the Statewide Self-Advocacy Network (SSAN), a series of
conversations focused on employment support, and a townhall on
subminimum wage set for October 30th. Additionally, he highlighted the
release of a new storyteller blog featuring Cole’s experience, along with a
popular back-to-school resource guide covering early education, IEP
strategies, and transition to adulthood. Finally, he introduced the new
North Bay Regional Manager Kenya Martinez and State Plan Manager
Barbara Imle and announced the retirements of David Grady and Ruby
Villanueva.

Councilmember Vivana Barnwell thanked David Grady for his
contributions to the community, highlighting his commitment to hosting
inclusive events. Councilmember Cathay Liu acknowledged the work
done on the quality assessment project report and requested further
involvement in understanding how data would be analyzed and used to
improve the quality of life for individuals. The Executive Director
responded, offering to arrange a follow-up meeting with Councilmember
Liu, Hannah Dunham, and other interested Councilmembers to discuss
how core indicators could influence service improvements.
Councilmember Kara Ponton shared insights on the National Core
Indicators, explaining her experience on the stakeholder group and
describing the survey components. Councilmember Harold Fujita noted
that while abolishing subminimum wages would be challenging, it would
not address the subminimum wages paid to incarcerated individuals,
many of whom have disabilities. He urged the Council to consider this
perspective.

Legend:
SA = Self-Advocate N/A = not available Page 5
FA = Family Advocate DNP = Did Not Participate

19



8. STATEWIDE SELF-ADVOCACY NETWORK (SSAN) REPORT
Chair Witherspoon postponed this item until after the Master Plan update
to provide Councilmember Julie Gaona additional time to return to the
meeting. He re-opened the item by thanking Councilmember Alex Reyes
for his contributions to the Statewide Self-Advocacy Network (SSAN).
Councilmember Julie Gaona then provided Councilmembers with an
update from SSAN’s Zoom meeting on September 4-5, 2024. She also
announced that Councilmember Rosie Ryan was appointed to represent
SCDD on the SSAN following a vote held on September 23, 2024, at the
SAAC meeting. The next SSAN meeting will be in 2025.

9. NOMINATIONS FOR CHAIR & VICE CHAIR
The Executive Director reviewed the nomination process for selecting a
new Chair and Vice Chair to replace Chair Witherspoon and Vice Chair
Bycel, who were no longer eligible for re-election after serving four years.
According to the bylaws, the positions of Chair and Vice Chair needed to
be filled by eligible members, which included self-advocates and family
advocates with at least one year remaining in their terms. The election
process was set to begin with the Chair election in November, followed by
the Vice Chair role, which would be filled by a candidate from the opposite
category (if a self-advocate was elected as Chair, a family advocate
would need to assume the Vice Chair role, and vice versa).

Nominees for Chair:

-Nestor Nieves

-Viviana Barnwell

-Harold Fujita

-Julie Gaona

-Alex Reyes

-Harold Ashe declined the nomination for Chair, but accepted the
nomination for Vice Chair

Nominees for Vice Chair:

-Harold Ashe

-Viviana Barnwell

-Harold Fujita

-Julie Gaona

-Nestor Nieves

-Alex Reyes

-Cathay Liu declined the nomination for Vice Chair

Legend:
SA = Self-Advocate N/A = not available Page 6
FA = Family Advocate DNP = Did Not Participate

20



10.

Candidates were asked to submit statements, which would be included in
the November meeting packet for consideration.

MASTER PLAN DISCUSSION

Victor Duron, the Project Director for the Master Plan of Developmental
Services, outlined the vision and process for the Master Plan’s
development. He emphasized that the plan aims to be community-driven,
with meaningful input from stakeholders, including a diverse group of 38
members and over 90 additional participants across five workgroups. The
primary goal is to have a draft of the Master Plan ready by March 2025,
with equity as a central focus throughout the development process.

During the discussion, Councilmember Michael Ellis raised concerns
about achieving consistency across all 21 Regional Centers (RCs). Victor
responded, emphasizing the need for a balance between individualized
services and a coherent framework that all RCs can follow. He noted that
specifics on implementation would follow once clear recommendations
were established.

Councilmember Nestor Nieves commented on the vagueness of the
workgroup’s priorities, questioning how implementation might be
addressed through legislative or policy changes. Victor clarified that the
committee’s current role is to define what needs to be done, with the how
to be detailed later as specific recommendations develop.

Councilmember Lupe Rodriguez highlighted issues in achieving a person-
centered service system, particularly the high turnover of service
coordinators at Regional Centers, which creates mistrust and
inconsistency in client relationships. Victor agreed, pointing out that
workforce improvements were a crucial part of the Master Plan, with
considerations for compensation, career progression, and professional
development as potential recommendations to enhance staff retention
and service quality.

Councilmember Andy Imparato expressed concerns about the scope of
the plan, suggesting a need for broader goals like those used in the
Master Plan on Aging to avoid too much detail. Victor Duron agreed,
noting the plan’s leadership under CalHHS and its focus on creating
seamless services across systems. He highlighted the importance of

Legend:
SA = Self-Advocate N/A = not available Page 7
FA = Family Advocate DNP = Did Not Participate

21



aligning the plan with the fluctuating budget and ensuring it tracks
meaningful outcomes.

Vice Chair Lee Bycel voiced concerns about the impact of feedback
gathered during meetings and the importance of incorporating insights
directly from those working at regional centers. Mr. Duron announced
plans to discuss the feedback from these discussions at the next meeting,
with a consulting firm aiding in organizing and collecting qualitative data
from RC directors, service coordinators, and direct support professionals.

Councilmember Julie Gaona highlighted the need for improved
communication between regional centers and supported living agencies
to enhance service coordination. Victor Duron acknowledged that current
systems often serve institutional needs over individual needs, noting that
this feedback could shape recommendations.

Councilmember Alex Reyes asked about support for incarcerated
individuals, particularly those with disabilities. Mr. Duron emphasized the
need for pre-release resources to enable a seamless transition and
acknowledged the justice system’s lack of disability training. He relayed
that these issues were being explored, though specific recommendations
have not been made yet.

Councilmember Joyce McNair raised the issue of passion in the
workforce, asking how to cultivate dedication among professionals like
that of self-advocates and families. Victor acknowledged the need for the
workforce to understand and be passionate about their roles, highlighting
ongoing efforts to improve career awareness, compensation, and
professional fulfillment in the field.

Councilmember Viviana Barnwell emphasized the importance of including
individuals with lived experiences, particularly recent immigrants facing
language barriers, in the workgroups.

Councilmember Christine Mirzaian raised concerns about the “payer of
last resort” requirement, noting that it often created barriers rather than
supporting families in securing necessary services. Victor Duron
acknowledged this concern, emphasizing the need to shift the burden
from individuals to systems, aiming to promote a “culture of yes”.

Legend:
SA = Self-Advocate N/A = not available Page 8
FA = Family Advocate DNP = Did Not Participate

22



11.

12.

Councilmember Kara Ponton added that cultural perceptions of disability
vary and should be considered in the plan’s development. Mr. Duron
noted the importance of respecting diverse views on disability and family
roles across communities.

Councilmember Julie Neward advocated for the inclusion of siblings in the
workgroups, especially those who are navigating dual caregiving roles for
siblings with disabilities and aging parents. Victor Duron noted that the
workgroups do include siblings. He also highlighted ongoing discussions
with state alliances that were addressing the complexities faced by aging
caregivers and recipients of DDS services, confirming that these issues
were being actively discussed and considered in the development of the
Master Plan.

Councilmember Nestor Nieves inquired about training for workgroup
members, and Mr. Duron explained that members receive guidance and
resources from consultants to ensure informed participation.

Councilmember Harold Fujita expressed concerns about public trust in
government, emphasizing the need for honest communication and
transparency in government promises and actions. Victor acknowledged
these points, ensuring ongoing efforts to build trust through community-
engaged planning and open forums to listen to community needs and
challenges.

CLOSED SESSION: PERSONNEL
The Council went into closed session.

RECONVENE OPEN SESSION
The Council reconvened from closed session with no actions to report.

Vice Chair Bycel announced that although they did not have any actions
to report, he wanted to recognize the 10th anniversary of Executive
Director Carruthers’ service to the Council. Councilmembers collectively
expressed their deep appreciation for his decade of leadership. Under his
leadership, the Executive Director strengthened the Council’s financial
integrity, implemented strong checks and balances, and secured
additional funding to expand services for the developmental disabilities
community. His effective advocacy efforts supported meaningful
legislation, while his responsiveness during emergencies, such as

Legend:
SA = Self-Advocate N/A = not available Page 9
FA = Family Advocate DNP = Did Not Participate

23



13.

Wildfires and the pandemic, provided critical support to those in need.
Additionally, Executive Director Carruthers built collaborative networks
across the state, enhanced relationships with state government, and
raised the Council’s national recognition. The Council expressed its
profound gratitude for his lasting impact and leadership.

NEXT MEETING DATE AND ADJOURNMENT
The next Council meeting will be held on Zoom on November 19, 2024.
Chair Witherspoon adjourned the meeting at 4:00 P.M.

Legend:
SA = Self-Advocate N/A = not available Page 10
FA = Family Advocate DNP = Did Not Participate

24



Name
Adler, Nicole

Ashe, Harold
Barnwell, Viviana
Beckley, Mark
Billingsley, Joseph
Brown, Jessica
Bycel, Lee
Cooper, Debra
Ellis, Michael
Fujita, Harold
Gaona, Julie
Garnica, Julio
Grove, Jessica
Imparato, Andy
Jones, Sonia

Liu, Cathay
McNair, Joyce
Mizarian, Christine
Neward, Julie
Nieves, Nestor

Ponton, Kara

Reyes, Alex

Rodriguez, Lupe
Ryan, Rosanna
Stahmer, Aubyn
Warner, Blake
Wauvrin, Nick

Witherspoon, Wesley

Action 1
For

For

For

For

For

For

For

For

For

For

For

For

For

For

For

For

For

For

For

For

For

For

For

For

For

For

For

For

Legend:
SA = Self-Advocate
FA = Family Advocate

N/A = not available

DNP = Did Not Participate

25

Page 11



NOVEMBER 19, 2024

AGENDA ITEM 9.
INFORMATION ITEM

STATE COUNCIL ON DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITIES

Chair Report and Committee Assignment

Council Chair Wesley Witherspoon will provide Councilmembers with an oral
report about his recent activities, and current priorities for the Council, and
appoint the new SSDAC Chair.

SCDD Committee reports have been provided for informational purposes.

Attachments
The Legislative and Public Policy Committee (LPPC) met on 10/15/24.
The Executive Committee met on 10/22/24.

Handouts
The State Plan Committee (SPC) will meet on 11/14/24.
The Self-Advocates Advisory Committee (SAAC) will meet on 11/18/24.

26



AGENDA ITEM 9A.

LEGISLATIVE AND PUBLIC POLICY COMMITTEE SUMMARY

Date of Meeting
October 15, 2024

Meeting’s Focus

The Legislative and Public Policy Committee met on October 15". The
meeting’s focus was to discuss a priority strategy for the 2025 legislative
season, receive updates on the 2024 Bill Ideas Contest, and to review the
status of the bills the Council supported this year.

Members reviewed and provided feedback on the draft “2024 There Should
Be a Law Contest Report.” After discussion about possible focus areas for
2025, the Committee acted to recommend that the Council make “taking
charge” the theme for the 2025 legislative season. Members also reviewed
the Council’'s 2025-26 Policy Priorities and requested that staff insert a
‘preamble” that will emphasize the importance of having people with
intellectual/developmental disabilities driving the policy changes that effect
their lives. Revisions will be sent to the full Council for approval.

Items Acted Upon

e The Committee acted to approve the March 2024 Meeting Minutes.

e The Committee acted to recommend that the Council make “taking
charge” the theme for the 2025 legislative season.

Future Meeting Dates
To be determined.

27



AGENDA ITEM 9B.

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE SUMMARY

Date of Meeting
October 22, 2024

Meeting’s Focus

The Executive Committee met on October 22, 2024. The meeting’s focus
centered on two sponsorship requests, three conflict of interest waiver
requests, an SCDD budget update, the Executive Director’s report, guidance
for the Executive Director Evaluation, and a year-end discussion.

Executive Director Carruthers provided a comprehensive report to members
highlighting the Council’s ongoing involvement in celebrating October as
National Disability Employment Awareness Month. He detailed planned
activities including a virtual employment webinar hosted by the Statewide
Self-Advocacy Network (SSAN), a series of conversations focused on
employment support, and a townhall on subminimum wage set for October
30th. He also presented master plan updates and shared that he presented
to workgroups on SCDD’s navigation services. Lastly, he provided an update
on what SCDD does in terms of capacity building, demographic data about
who SCDD serves, a summary of 2023 activities, and systems navigation
trends.

ltems Acted Upon

e Approval of the August 2024 meeting minutes.

e Sponsorship requests from Bay Area Autism Collective (BAAC) and
Disability Voices United (DUV).

e Conflict of interest waiver requests from Far Northern Regional Center
Board Members Cali McKenzie, Patricia McCarthy, and William Moore.

e Approval of the ED Evaluation Guidance as a recommendation for future
Executive Committee Chairs to use during the ED Evaluation process.

Future Meeting Date
February 2025

28



NOVEMBER 19, 2024

AGENDA ITEM 10.
INFORMATION ITEM

STATE COUNCIL ON DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITIES

Executive Director Report and Staff Reports

SCDD Executive Director Aaron Carruthers will provide Councilmembers with
an oral report regarding recent Council activities. Additionally, SCDD Staff
reports have been included in the packet for informational purposes.

Attachments

Chief Deputy Director Report
Policy and Public Affairs Report
C.R.A./V.A.S. Update Report
QA Project Update Report

Handout
Executive Director Report

29



Chief Deputy Director’s Report: November 2024

The Chief Deputy Director (CDD) continues overseeing operational matters,
in concert with staff, and identifying organizational tools to assist the team.
Time also has been spent meeting with staff, management, and external
partners on various programs, program policy, and implementation,
including the Supported Decision-Making Technical Assistance Program
(SDM TAP).

Other projects include collaborative conversations with DDS partners
regarding the CRA/VAS and QA programs, and other opportunities/project
ideas regarding employment and quality assessment surveys. Conversations
address funding and contracting matters as well as program efficiencies.

The Chief Deputy Director continues to facilitate and oversee SCDD’s
administrative functions such as budget management, contracts, and day-
to-day operations.

o Ongoing implementation and grant management/oversight leadership with
the Supported Decision-making Technical Assistance Program team and
external partners.

o Meetings and implementation actions with program support contractors for
project evaluation (e.g., finalizing evaluation questions and surveys) and
resource library content and procedures

o Reviewed and approved program and operational contracts, and purchases
(e.g., automatic mailing devices and IT equipment.

o Reviewed and approved numerous invoices for program, administrative,
and operational services, including translation and interpretation services
and support for self-advocates presenting at self-determination project
trainings.

30



Worked with the budget manager on numerous reporting and budget
building drills with the Department of Finance as part of the annual state
budget development process for Fiscal Year 2025-26.

Worked with the Operations and State Plan Manager on annual reporting
for records management and related state compliance requirements.

Concluded the recruitment for SCDD staff counsel.

Continued the recruitment to fill the Director for Policy and Public Affairs.
Interviews are schedule for November.

Concluded on-boarding for the new Quality Assessment Program Manager and

working with the manager and the team to support ramp-up of the next in-
person survey cycle, including regular meetings with our DDS partners.

31



NOVEMBER 2024 REPORT FROM THE OFFICE OF POLICY, AND PUBLIC
AFFAIRS

POLICY UPDATE

v 2024 Bills: This year the Policy Team supported 15 bills and monitored all bills
that could affect the /DD community.

» This year we saw 8 bills pass and get signed into law by the Governor.
These bills included: SB 483, SB 1384, AB 1147, AB 1885, SB 1197, SB
1001, AB 3291, ACR 179.

> 2 bills that passed via the budget- AB 1876, and $2 million recurring funds
for Inclusive College Technical Center AB 447, 2023.

» 4 bills that were vetoed: SB 37, SB 1443, SB 1281, AB 1977.

» 1 bill that failed in committee: AB 2753

» 1 bill we stopped supporting: AB 2510

v' There Should Be a Law Contest Report for 2025 is now complete and will be
shared with legislators and their staff. We received close to 100 submissions in
policy categories that include Public Safety, Employment, Education, Health, and
Human Services. The winner of the contest will be selected soon.

v' 2025 Policy Priorities: We continue to review and research issues brought to
our attention. These issues are considered for future policy priorities. LPPC
recommends the theme for 2025 legislative year be Taking Charge, because we
should be in charge of changing or creating policy to improve our lives.

v" Townhall Meeting for Subminimum Wage: On October 30th, SCDD held a
townhall meeting to hear back from the public on the transition from subminimum
wage to competitive integrated employment. The purpose of the meeting was to
learn both the successes and challenges of the transition out of subminimum
wage. The discussion included feedback from service provider professionals and
individuals who are transitioning out of subminimum wage. One concern voiced
by individuals is losing SS benefits if working. Individuals stated that they cannot
live on minimum wages because of their health issues and healthcare costs.
Professionals shared that some clients need/want short term jobs with flexibility
so that they can go to school. Individuals voiced that having jobs gives them
confidence. Professionals indicated that not all service models fit all individuals.
Recommendations included: What if they kept their health insurance and
supported income, since it will take a while for clients to reach a level where they

32



can support themselves and have health insurance? Other feedback stated that
once workshops or day programs closed, clients with severe disabilities had no
where to go and did not continue into CIE. The information received from the
townhall meeting will be included in the SB 639 statutorily required annual report.

SB 37 SCDD Sponsor: a housing subsidy bill for aging individuals and people
with disabilities age 50 and over. Due to the current and growing budget deficit,
the bill was amended to reduce its cost from $500,000 to $25,000 and made it a
pilot program. Though the bill passed both houses this year, it was vetoed by the
Governor. Because no budget was secured for the bill in 2024, the Governor in
his veto message recommended to leverage existing resources for SB 37 rather
than request new resources or funding from the budget. With this
recommendation in mind, the coalition has started planning for running the bill
again in 2025. CSH has hired a public affairs firm to assist with creating a
strategic plan for outreach and education on why the bill is needed.

Employment First Coalition: In 2023 this diverse coalition championed the
creation of the Employment First Office at HHS. We continue to meet on a
weekly basis, compiling recommendations, and expertise that we will share with
HHS. It is our hope that they will use our recommendations in implementing the
new office come July 2024. The coalition has also decided to focus their efforts
on creating recommendations for the Master Plan on Developmental Disabilities.

CA Technical Center for Inclusive College. This year the ICA Coalition and
SCDD successfully advocated for $2Million recurring funds for a CA Center for
Inclusive College, to be administered by a County of Education (COE). The
Center will connect agencies (DOR, Regional Centers) to college opportunities
for students with I/DD. It will also identify best practices for colleges that want to
establish inclusive programs and assist with identifying funding sources to
establish programs. The CA Dept of Education will select a county of education
and award the grant or monies to that county. SCDD recommended the award go
to Sacramento County of Education (SCOE) and wrote a letter of
support/recommendation for SCOE. No COE winner has been announced yet.

Deaf Steering Committee: At the July 17th Deaf Steering Committee meeting,
DDS provided updates on the availability of grant funds/applications now
available for different agencies that want to train staff on working with deaf and
hard of hearing clients. At the October 24th meeting, DDS gave updates on
language and communication assessments- a request for proposals (RFP) for

33



language and communications assessments on July 9th. From the applicants,
DDS selected and hired H &K Solutions to develop the assessment tools that will
be used for communication and assessment of deaf plus clients. The concern
SCDD raised in the meeting was the training for assessors that will be using the
assessment tools. Because of high turnover rate for staff, | was concerned that
staff might not be consistent or use tools appropriately. DDS response was that
all the modules with be online, and training will be online when onboarding new
staff.

v State Public Comment: We submitted public comment in support of
adding/including the I/DD community to receive transition housing assistance
from DHCS and for them to collect housing data from regional centers.

COMMUNICATIONS UPDATE

OUTREACH

v' October News & Events email blast: Included messaging that highlighted
National Disability Employment Awareness Month (NDEAM) featuring the 2024
theme “Access to Good Jobs for All.” Also included links to the following October
commemorative events; National Bullying Prevention Month, Down Syndrome
Awareness Month, Filipino American History Month, Learning Disabilities
Awareness Month, and Indigenous People’s Day. Additional messaging included,
General Election information about the three ways to vote from the CA Secretary
of State’s Office, Registration for SCDD proprietary NDEAM events: NEON CoP
2.0 webinar series, and Sub-Minimum Wage Town Hall. Cycle 47 Tribal Health
RFP grant, and SCDD meetings. Messaging was disseminated to over 19,000
unique email addresses, including the CA Legislature via Constant Contact, and
shared via the Council’s primary social media pages.

v October 8, 2024, News Release for the announcement of the eight Council
supported bill signed into law. Distribution tactics included an email blast
disseminated to over 11,000 unique email addresses, including the CA
Legislature via Constant Contact, and shared via the Council’s primary social
media pages: Facebook, X(formerly Twitter), Instagram, and LinkedIn.

v' NDEAM 2024 Online Council Events: SCDD celebrated NDEAM with a bouquet
of online events focused on employment, mentorship, advocacy, and disability
rights. Messaging about the multiple events were disseminated to over 20,000
unique email addresses including the CA Legislature via Constant Contact, and

34


https://conta.cc/4ekx1Rk
https://scdd.ca.gov/wp-content/uploads/sites/33/2024/09/SCDD-NEON-Community-of-Practice-Webinar-Series.pdf
https://scdd.ca.gov/wp-content/uploads/sites/33/2024/09/SCDD-NEON-Community-of-Practice-Webinar-Series.pdf
https://files.constantcontact.com/be05f332501/5ce55465-b7bc-4875-93f3-0596487ab70c.pdf
https://scdd.ca.gov/newsroom/
https://conta.cc/3BJHMhT

shared via the Council’s primary social media pages: Facebook, X(formerly
Twitter), Instagram, and LinkedIn.

YourVoteCounts! 2024 Voter Guide: SCDD branded general election voting
resources email with disseminated to over 11,000 unique email addresses,
including the CA Legislature via Constant Contact, and shared via the Council’s
primary social media pages: Facebook, X(formerly Twitter), Instagram, and
LinkedIn Call to action messaging about the three ways to vote before and on
election day with quotes from SCDD councilmembers including voting resources,
and how to report voting access problems.

October Blog Feature Post: “Breaking Barriers for a More Inclusive Future” An
email blast was sent to nearly 11,000 unique email addresses, including the CA
Legislature via Constant Contact, and shared via the Council’s primary social
media pages. Creative for the rotating banner on the Council’s website was
developed to promote the post.

Remaining NDEAM 2024 Online Council Events: SCDD celebrated the closing
days of NDEAM with the promotion of the last three online events focused on
employment, mentorship, advocacy, and disability rights. Messaging about the
remaining events were disseminated to over 12,000 unique email addresses
including the CA Legislature via Constant Contact, and shared via the Council’s
primary social media pages: Facebook, X(formerly Twitter), Instagram, and
LinkedIn.

2024 Election Day and Voter Resources Final Push: YourVoteCounts! SCDD
branded general election final push voting resources email disseminated to over
10,000 unique email addresses, including the CA Legislature via Constant
Contact, and shared via the Council’s primary social media pages: Facebook,
X(formerly Twitter), Instagram, and LinkedIn Call to action messaging about the
three ways to vote in the final week before and on election day. Including voting
hotline numbers, voting resources, and how to report voting access problems.

November News & Events email blast: Included messaging that included links to
the following November commemorative events; CA Sikh American Awareness &
Appreciation Month, National Native American Heritage Month. Additional
messaging included; end of daylight saving time, general election day, Veterans
day, Thanksgiving day and SCDD meetings. Messaging was disseminated to
over 12,000 unique email addresses, including the CA Legislature via Constant
Contact, and shared via the Council’s primary social media pages.

35


https://conta.cc/3YoUUlp
https://conta.cc/3Um8ZgT
https://conta.cc/3Nu6p4T
https://conta.cc/4hp9Ffk
https://conta.cc/3UvxZ5w

v Assisted regional offices, SCDD HQ & committees, and partners with designing
creative and messaging, including disseminating information about existing and

upcoming initiatives (including webinars and live in-person events) via statewide
email or social media.

BRANDING

v" Comms developed an English and Spanish flyer to promote the SCDD
proprietary Subminimum Wage Town Hall. The PDF flyer with an active
registration link was delivered via email to all SCDD Staff to share with their
networks, potential speakers, and disseminate via their email communications.

36



State Council on Developmental Disabilities November 2024 £°8

Maria Arredondo serves as the Clients Rights Advocate at Porterville Developmental Center (PDC) with the
State Council on Developmental Disabilities, where she has been employed for 1 year and 8 months. In her

role, Maria is dedicated to providing advocacy services by listening to clients, investigating rights
violations, and representing their interests to ensure their rights are protected. She actively participates in
various committees at the development center to promote the well-being of clients. Maria’s motivation to
work in this field stems from her desire to make a positive impact in the lives of individuals with
developmental disabilities, helping them achieve their full potential. Her previous experience as a social
worker at Child Welfare Services for Tulare County has equipped her with the knowledge and tenacity
necessary to advocate effectively for the individuals residing at PDC.Throughout her advocacy work, Maria
has encountered both successes and challenges. A notable success involved advocating for a client who
wished to be moved from a unit; through collaboration and communication with the program manager, the
client was successfully relocated to a more suitable environment. Maria measures the impact of her efforts
by the satisfaction of her clients, documenting interactions to ensure follow-up on any issues. She finds
fulfillment in knowing she is a supportive presence for individuals at PDC, emphasizing the importance of
advocacy in daily life. Looking ahead, Maria aims to continue her professional development to better serve
her clients and envisions a future where self-advocacy goals paired with advocacy services provide a

fulfilling life for each individual.
37



VCALIFORNIA

State Council on Developmental Disabilities

Quality Assessment Project (QAP) Report
November 2024

New Quality Assessment Project Manager

Hannah Dunham joined as the new Quality Assessment Project Manager, officially starting on
October 7,

Hannah has 13 years of experience working in the I/DD field, including serving as a direct
support worker at Pride, a service coordinator at NBRC, a client services manager at ACRC, and a
QA interviewer.

Hannah notes, “Self-advocates do not have enough opportunities to have their voices heard. |
recognize and appreciate the importance of the QA Project in changing that.”

Current Cycle: In-Person Survey (IPS)

The IPS cycle recently launched, with Quality Assurance Coordinators (QACs) onboarding and
training contracted interviewers in the final stages of required training modules. In this cycle, a
random sample of individuals aged 18 or older who receive at least one regional center-funded
service, in addition to case management, will be surveyed. Each of the 21 regional centers has a
target of 400 surveys, aiming for a statewide total of 8,400 surveys.

Respondents can choose to have their surveys conducted either in-person at a location of their
choice or remotely via Zoom Healthcare, a HIPAA-compliant video conferencing platform. SCDD
has contracted with approximately 183 surveyors across California to conduct these surveys,
with language support in Spanish, Mandarin, Cantonese, Vietnamese, Farsi, Korean, and ASL.

The Department of Developmental Services (DDS) continues to emphasize stratified data
collection, aiming for representative samples from each regional center. This includes ensuring
proportional representation across five ethno-racial groups: African American/Black, Asian,
Hispanic, White, and Other.

38



About National Core Indicators

National Core Indicators (NCI) strives to
provide states with valid and reliable tools
to help improve system performance and
better serve people with intellectual and
developmental disabilities and their
families.

Through a contract with Department of
Developmental Services (DDS), State Council
on Developmental Disabilities (SCDD), using
the NCI Survey tools, collects quantitative
data on consumer satisfaction, provision of
services, and personal outcomes. Data
collection is completed through face-to-face
interviews with consumers as well as mail-in
surveys from families.

This data collection effort will enable DDS to
evaluate the quality and performance of
California's developmental disability service
delivery system and among all 21 regional
centers over time.

For RC results of past surveys go to:
https://www.dds.ca.gov/rc/nci/reports/

For more information about the NCI go to:
https://www.nationalcoreindicators.org/

Scan QR code below to go to QA Project Webpage
scdd.ca.gov/qap

e

39

QAC Regional Center Assignments

QAC: Vacant
Support Staff: Sarah Wirrig
Far Northern
Redwood Coast

Ron Usac
Support Staff: Valerie Buell
East Bay
San Andreas
North Bay

George Lewis
Support Staff: Vacant
Alta California
Central Valley
Valley Mountain

Lia Cervantes-Lerma = Brianna Reynoso *
Jenny Villanueva
Support Staff: Austin Murphy and
Marina Bchtikian
East Los Angeles
Frank D. Lanterman
Harbor
North Los Angeles
San Gabriel Pomona
South Central Los Angeles
Westside

Angel Wiley
Priscilla Huang, SSA
SSA: Vacant
Support Staff: Vacant
Golden Gate
Orange County
San Diego

QAC: Vacant
Support Staff: Jose Valle
Inland
Kern
Tri-Counties


https://www.dds.ca.gov/rc/nci/reports/
https://www.nationalcoreindicators.org/

NOVEMBER 19, 2024

AGENDA ITEM 11.
VOTE ITEM

STATE COUNCIL ON DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITIES
2025 Policy Planning

SCDD Executive Director Aaron Carruthers will provide members with an
overview of the Legislative platform and will present highlights from the 2024
“There Should Be a Law Contest!” Report. The “There Should Be a Law
Contest” is an annual bill idea contest that SCDD engages in that allows
members of the public to submit legislative ideas on matters that impact the
I/DD community.

Councilmembers will also be presented with the Legislative and Public Policy
Committee’s (LPPC) 2025 policy priority recommendations for consideration.

Attachments
Proposed Policy Priorities 2025-26
There Should be a Law Contest Report 2024

Handout(s)
November Legislative Presentation
May be additional handout(s) the day of the meeting.

Action Recommended

Adopt the Legislative and Public Policy Committee’s recommendation to focus
on legislative priorities that fall under the theme of “Taking Charge” for 2025.

40



CALIFORNIA STATE COUNCIL ON
DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITIES

/ Policy Priorities 2025-26

People with intellectual and developmental disabilities and their families have a right
to exert control and choice over their own lives, play decision making roles in policies
and programs, and be fully integrated into the economic, political, social, cultural and
educational mainstream of California.’ To advance these rights, the State Council on
Developmental Disabilities declares these policy priorities.

PROTECTING AND ENHANCING CIVIL RIGHTS

Every person with intellectual and developmental disabilities (I/DD) has the right to self-
determination, equality of opportunity, full participation, independent living, and
economic self-sufficiency no matter their disability.

The Council will work to ensure civil rights, are protected, and enhanced, including
identification and reduction of racial and ethnic inequalities and disparities, advocating for
transparency in processes, and supporting persons with I/DD and their families to
participate in policy/systems change.

GUARANTEEING ACCESS TO EDUCATION AND EMPLOYMENT

Every student with I/DD has the right to a quality inclusive education with their peers
that prepares them for post-secondary education and/or competitive integrated
employment (CIE). Students with disabilities must be provided the same opportunities
for learning, in the classroom and online, as students without disabilities.

Every person with /DD should have the opportunity to be employed in CIE. Individuals
must have access to information, benefits counseling, transition planning, job training,
career exploration and information and support for inclusive post-secondary education.
New or expanded pathways to CIE must be developed and supported, including
apprenticeships and internships.

The Council will work to ensure the full and robust implementation of the Workforce
Innovation and Opportunity Act, California’s Employment First Law, and the California
Employment First Office. The Council will ensure that policies and practices improve
opportunities for and incentivize CIE, encourage supports for employers, and make the
state a model employer.

IDENTIFYING & PRIORITIZING EMERGING ISSUES IN THE I/DD COMMUNITY

Every person with a developmental disability should not have to deal with problems of
that arise due to the emergence of inequality issues in the community. Events in our
everyday lives, both due to policy changes 2r11d unforeseen events, have the ability to

1 Developmental Disabilities Assistance and Bill of Rights Act of 2000, (Public Law 106—402; 42 U.S.C. Sec. 15001 et seq.) Section 101



cause unintended consequences for the I/DD community. These issues must be
identified and acted upon swiftly to ensure as little harm as possible is inflicted.

The Council will work to ensure emerging issues including, but not limited to, dealing
with disparities across all I/DD issues, barriers to participating in a community setting,
and roadblocks to access for people with I/DD are dealt with through policy changes and
by keeping the administration and lawmakers informed about issues.

PROMOTING ACCESS TO QUALITY SUPPORTS IN THE COMMUNITY

Every person with I/DD should have the ability to fully participate in their communities.
Receiving quality, individualized services is the cornerstone for people with 1/DD to be
safe, healthy and to promote self-determination, interdependence, and inclusion.
Community-based services/supports require adequate wages for providers; therefore,
the state must restore rates. Disparities in access, outcomes, and quality for services
and supports must be addressed. Complexities in the service delivery systems must be
reduced.

The Council will make meaningful improvements to the service delivery system to
reduce dispatrities, increase transparency and accountability and increase quality
outcomes by making recommendations to the Master Plan on Developmental
Services, and by ensuring successful implementation of the Self- Determination
Program and Achieving Better Life Experience Act.

ENSURING SAFETY IN THE COMMUNITY

Every person with I/DD has a right to be safe and must be provided emergency
preparedness training and training in personal safety. Law enforcement personnel, first
responders, emergency medical professionals and the judicial system must be trained in
how to work with people with I/DD (including those who are suspects, victims or
witnesses of crimes) during the course of their duties.

The Council will work to ensure people with I/DD are safe, free from abuse and neglect
and have access to services and supports in their communities during all types of
disasters or emergencies and an adequate safety net for people in crisis and access to
adequate crisis intervention services.

IMPROVING HOUSING AND COMMUNITY LIVING

Every person with I/DD should have the opportunity to live in the community.
Permanent, affordable, accessible, safe and sustained housing options must be
continually developed. Statewide inclusive living options for individuals with I/DD must
be increased and enhanced through access to housing and subsidies that are paired in
a timely manner with needed services and supports.

The Council will work to identify housing resources for persons with I/DD and their
families to prevent homelessness and advocate for availability of accessible and
affordable housing.

For more information, contact: scdd@scdd.ca.gov | 916-263-7919
42


mailto:scdd@scdd.ca.gov

4th Annual There Should Be a Law
Contest Report
a October 2024

Prepared by:

The California State Council.on o A
Developmental Disabilities‘!3 \/sc DD

State Council on Developmenlal Disabilitie:



Table of Contents

Voices from the CommuNity...............ccooiiiii e 2
Taking Charge... in Inclusion, in JUStICe...........................coovvriiiiieiieeiiiieee e 2
Calling on CRAMPIONS ..................oovuuniiieee ettt e e e e e e e e e e e e aeeeees 2

Terms DefiNeqd: ... 3
D ETod F= 1 T PSP PPPPPPPRRT 3

PUDIIC SAfEty ....oooiiiiiiiieeeee 3

1= o USRS 8

HUM@AN SEIVICES ... e e e et e e e e e e e e eeeeenna e e e e aeeaeeeees 14

Lo [U o= (T o SRR 25

0 0] 0] (@)Y 0 =T o | S PP 34

(0T U ] o T PP 36

TranSPOMAtION ... e eaan 38

(@11 I o | £SO PPPPPRR 40

Federal POICY ........oooiiiiiiiieee e 41

44



There Should Be a Law Contest, Report 2024

Voices from the Community

This is the State Council on Developmental Disabilities (SCDD) 4th annual There
Should Be a Law Contest report. The contest is a unique platform that provides persons
with intellectual and developmental disabilities (I/DD) an opportunity to have a
conservation with the public and law makers—to talk about their experiences, share
their frustrations and challenges-- but also empowers them with a role to actively seek
solutions to improve the quality level of their lives. SCDD is honored to advocate for the
I/DD community and to provide a vehicle where persons with I/DD can use their voices
to advocate for themselves.

The issues and recommendations are presented in the voice of the person who
submitted it. Submissions have been categorized by policy areas that include public
safety (13 ideas), health (15 ideas), human services (24 ideas), education (17 ideas),
employment (6 ideas), housing (5 ideas), transportation (5 ideas), civil rights (3 ideas),
and federal matters (4 ideas). SCDD presents the ideas without endorsement.

Taking Charge... in Inclusion, in Justice

Asked in September 2024, the survey got close to 100 bill idea submissions on topics in
nine different areas. One thing is clear-- much work remains to be done to improve the
quality of lives of persons with I1/DD and their families. For those with lived experience or
others that are caring for a loved one with I/DD, progress has not come fast enough. We
have learned to become warriors because every day we must fight for what we and our
loved ones need. But to truly have a meaningful life, we cannot lack essential supports
and services nor lack the same opportunities that others without I/DD have. This means
we have the appropriate level of supports at exactly the time we need them. It means,
we have the same quality education and the same opportunities for education. It also
means we have the same opportunities for competitive integrated employment. But for
there to be progress, we must remain vigilant and steady in our pursuit of inclusion.
Indeed, we must take charge and be in charge of ensuring equity in all things. That is
why this year our policy priorities will focus on “Taking Charge”.

Calling on Champions

Meaningful change does not happen overnight nor without the help from others. The
I/DD community cannot see progress towards inclusion without partners willing to
advocate. We will need partners and champions with a willingness to join in the
advocacy and help tackle challenges the community asks for. Here we share their
experiences and encourage people with I1/DD, family members, lawmakers, and
partners to work together to identify solutions.

45



Terms Defined:

Family Advocate: Family member who advocates for a relative with an intellectual
and/or developmental disability.

Self-Advocate: Person with an intellectual and/or developmental disability who
advocates for oneself.

Service Provider: Individuals or agencies who provide services to persons with I/DD.

Professional: Experts in matters relating to the needs of the /DD community.

Disclaimer:

SCDD would like to note that a few ideas submitted do not represent the view, mission,
or goals of SCDD and the I/DD community as a whole, nor represent the vision of the
Lanterman Act. Those ideas are still included here to represent the variety of views
within a community with many perspectives.

Public Safety

Public Safety Submission 1.  Arrest Pedophiles (Self-Advocate)

ISSUE: Protection of people with I/DD against pedophiles we need to do more in this
area.

RECOMMENDATION: arrest all pedophiles keep them locked up for life.

Public Safety Submission 2.  Train on Police Interactions (Family Advocate)

ISSUE: (translated from Spanish) Our community has seen many accidents and
tragedies in the television news in recent years. Parents, families, and colleagues have
all experienced this. People with intellectual disabilities, who have non-verbal behavioral
crises, have lost their lives at the hands of the police. This situation is alarming and
urgent, we must take action. We as parents are very concerned and are asking for a
solution to this problem. PLEASE.

RECOMMENDATION: All Special Education students who have training with the police,
should have their transition plan to adulthood ready before they leave High School. This
training would be essential, and everything should be implemented as a goal in each

46


https://scdd.ca.gov/about/
https://arcbutte.org/understanding-the-lanterman-act-a-lifeline-for-individuals-with-developmental-disabilities/

student's Individualized Education Program (IEP). Include a mandatory section in the
IEP such as their Rights IN A POLICY.

Note: SB 882 (Eggman, 2021) created an Advisory Council on Improving
Interactions between People with Intellectual and Development Disabilities and
Law Enforcement. To participate in public comment in meetings visit link.

Public Safety Submission 3.  Train Police (Professional)

ISSUE: Law Enforcement negative interactions with persons with developmental and
intellectual disabilities.

RECOMMENDATION: All levels of Law Enforcement, including Police, Sheriff, CHP,
Correctional and Detention Officers, etc. should be required to take classes on
interacting with persons with disabilities. This should not be a "one and done" class, but
should be a reoccurring program (quarterly, every 6 months, etc.) that includes persons
with 1/DD, their family members and other people with disabilities presenting what their
experience with law enforcement has been and how any negative interaction with law
enforcement could have been less devastating had the officers recognized they were
working with someone with a disability...and changed their procedures to accommodate
the person with a disability.

Note: SB 882 (Eggman, 2021) created an Advisory Council on Improving
Interactions between People with Intellectual and Development Disabilities and
Law Enforcement. To participate in public comment in meetings visit this link.

Public Safety Submission 4.  Better Disaster Planning (Family Advocate)

ISSUE: At the moment, disaster planning is done by those with limited experience
working with people with disabilities or who are touched by the Access and Functional
Needs (AFN) community. Training often leaves out our demographics or it's an "add-on"
after the fact but not embedded into the initial strategies. Most importantly, community
members do not get to give input on shortfalls, scarcity of resources, or even the
planning of how they will be helped. My goal would be for the Office of Emergency
Services (OES), from the state down to each county and city, to hold community forums
to share and hear from their communities.

RECOMMENDATION: The California State OES would oversee guidelines that
mandate that all OES hold community forums—in public and virtually—they must
involve community participation. These events must work with stakeholder
organizations from all communities that would be impacted by a disaster to engage
community members in attending and letting their voices be heard. These events could
be about sharing plans and getting feedback. They can be about new rollouts, possible

47


https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=202120220SB882
https://oag.ca.gov/sb882/meetings
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=202120220SB882
https://oag.ca.gov/sb882/meetings

programs, or purely educational - but there must always be room for input from the
community, and it must be meaningful.

Public Safety Submission 5.  Jail Diversion (Self-Advocate)

ISSUE: People with developmental disabilities/mental health issues going to jail/prison.
This can be very frightening to them and as scary as if someone was going to physically
harm them.

RECOMMENDATION: If someone with a developmental disability or mental health
issue is really struggling emotionally, send them to a mental hospital/ hospital when they
start acting out and won't calm down, not jail.

Public Safety Submission 6. Scam Alerts (Family Member)

ISSUE: Special Banking designation for all accounts of special needs people. A safety
alert “of some kind” to prevent SCAM-artists from preying on and taking advantage of
the accounts of special people.

RECOMMENDATION: | think a type of code associated with the account that
transferred the call (scammer) / fraudulent ¢ ‘banker’ to a REAL banker.

Public Safety Submission 7.  Fingerprint Registry (Family Advocate)

ISSUE: When you need to do anything requiring to have a law-abiding person be
fingerprinted for employment or for volunteering to serve those who are disabled (or
not). | am a law-abiding citizen and have been fingerprinted so many times | have lost
count. Why can’t “good” fingerprints be stored and shared like they do for “the bad”
guys?

RECOMMENDATION: An adult who is fingerprinted should be able to have their prints
stored and shared. It is unnecessary for one to pay repeatedly to be fingerprinted once
you have done it. Maybe it could be good for a certain amount of time.

Public Safety Submission 8.  Train Police (Family Advocate)

ISSUE: Volatile DUI arrests for autistic adults. Training and new laws for not
understanding commands as opposed to punishment. There are no special
accommodations for disabled adults that do not understand laws or Miranda rights.

RECOMMENDATION: More training for police officers. Classes from regional to help
clients how to behave while dealing with police.

48



Note: SB 882 (Eggman, 2021) created an Advisory Council on Improving
Interactions between People with Intellectual and Development Disabilities and
Law Enforcement. To participate in public comment in meetings visit link.

Public Safety Submission 9.  Registry and Training for Officers (Family
Advocate)

ISSUE: When police officers are called to a situation involving someone with a
developmental disorder, a lack of understanding or information about the individual’'s
condition can lead to tragic outcomes. For instance, officers may misinterpret the
person’s behavior or communication style, which can result in unintended harm or fatal
incidents.

RECOMMENDATION: Implementing a state-level registry system for law enforcement
could provide officers with advance information about locations and individuals with

developmental disorders. This would allow officers to be better prepared and informed
before arriving at the scene. Additionally, offering training on developmental disorders
can further enhance their understanding and lead to safer, more effective interactions.

Note: SB 882 (Eggman, 2021) created an Advisory Council on Improving
Interactions between People with Intellectual and Development Disabilities and
Law Enforcement. To participate in public comment in meetings visit link.

Public Safety Submission 10. Disability ldentification (Family Advocate)

ISSUE: A better way to identify special needs in professional situations. i.e. at the
hospital, with interactions with police. Our any place where it would bring a more
understanding interaction.

RECOMMENDATION: My solution. Have a (optional) note on California identification
cards that there is a disability so when they're in contact with hospitals or police officers
they can see that the person is disabled. It may help professionals better help the
disabled persons.

Note: There have been prior legislative attempts to create identifiers on
identification cards, but the disability community is divided on this issue. A factor
against using identifiers is the question of privacy.

49


https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=202120220SB882
https://oag.ca.gov/sb882/meetings
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=202120220SB882
https://oag.ca.gov/sb882/meetings

Public Safety Submission 11. Online Safety Training (Family Advocate)

ISSUE: There should be a law to help protect and educate persons with developmental
disabilities from online predators and scammers. Predators purposely target
neurodiverse individuals because they know they don't have the "filter" to weed out
scams and others trying to gather their trust and information. They also know that the
developmentally disabled person wants relations and friends.

RECOMMENDATION: Makes laws to enable developmentally disabled and
neurodiverse community with workshops, online tutorials and mandatory classes in
middle and high school and other programs geared to them about online safety. Have
resources readily available for our community. Hold companies accountable for putting
in safety features to help protect the user.

Public Safety Submission 12. Stop Fiduciary Abuse (Professional)

ISSUE: | want to solve the problem of fiduciary abuse crimes against the DD and ID
population, not being prosecuted and there being no consequence or deterrent from
ongoing abuse.

RECOMMENDATION: Fiduciary Abuse is often perpetrated by someone close to the
victim, such as a family member or caregiver, whom they depend on. Because of this,
when criminal reports and/or APS reports are filed, and when the investigation takes
place, the victim is afraid of getting their abuser in trouble, and thus will often resort to,
"its ok, it was a misunderstanding; they didn't mean to; etc..." and they are afraid of how
it may affect their living arrangement, care, and other family supports. | envision the
approach would be much like the domestic violence laws and victim supports are in
place now.

Public Safety Submission 13. Labor/Human Trafficking- Collect Data for Effects
on Persons with I/DD (Professional)

ISSUE: The Office to Monitor and Combat Trafficking in Persons (under US State Dept)
reported on the intersectionality between labor human trafficking and persons with
disabilities. Though the report states more data is needed, it highlights how persons
with intellectual and physical disabilities face increased risk of exploitation by traffickers.

RECOMMENDATION: Collect data from all regional centers to learn how the 1/DD
community is being affected.

Note: This year AB 1888 (Arambula) passed which establishes the Labor
Trafficking Unit with the Department of Justice. The Unit will receive labor

50


https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billTextClient.xhtml?bill_id=202320240AB1888

trafficking reports and complaints and refer those complaints to appropriate
agencies for action. The bill will require, among other things, the Department of
Industrial Relations, and the Civil Rights Department to collaborate with the unit
to develop policies, procedures, and protocols to track, record, and report
potential labor trafficking to the unit. The bill would require the unit to develop a
tracking and reporting system to collect labor trafficking reports and complaints. It
is unclear whether the Unit will coordinate with any agencies that provide
programs and services to persons with disabilities, to collect data on how labor
trafficking affects persons with intellectual and developmental disabilities.

Health

Health Submission 1. EMUP Designation for Persons with I/DD (Professional)

ISSUE: Persons with IDD are a population that is underserved and found to have
health disparities.

In 2023, the National Institutes of Health (NIH) designated people with disabilities as a
population with health disparities. NIH released notice of funding opportunities calling
for research applications focused on novel and innovative approaches and interventions
that address the intersecting impact of disability, race and ethnicity, and socioeconomic
status on healthcare access and health outcomes. By California designating IDD as an
EMUP, it has the ability to incentivize clinicians/physicians to specialize in the
healthcare needs of those with IDD and increase overall access to providers.

RECOMMENDATION: Designate persons with IDD to be as an “Exceptional Medically
Underserved Population” (EMUP) in California.

What California designation of IDD as an EMUP would do:

» Expansion of physician and dentist training in the care of persons with IDD, funding for
expanded prevention and screening;

* Scholarship or loan repayment incentives for clinicians to serve this population;
« Community health center grants to provide care;
* Prioritization in research of issues affecting people with IDD; and

* Inclusion of people with IDD in clinical trials—particularly in later-stage therapeutic
research.

Note: A similar federal effort in H.R. 3380 HEADS UP Act of 2023 or Healthcare
Extension and Accessibility for Developmentally disabled and Underserved
Population Act to designate the I/DD population group as a Special Medically
Underserved Population (SMUP) The Act, introduced by Representative Seth

51


https://www.congress.gov/bill/118th-congress/house-bill/3380

Moulton on May 16, 2023, is being reviewed in the Health Subcommittee in
Congress. This bill would authorize the Department of Health and Human
Services (HHS) to award grants to support health centers that provide services
for individuals with developmental disabilities, including dental care. Grant
recipients must provide specialized treatment to individuals with developmental
disabilities. The bill also provides statutory authority for HHS to designate
individuals with developmental disabilities as health-professional shortage
population groups for the purposes of the National Health Service Corps (NHSC).
The NHSC provides scholarships and student loan repayment awards to eligible
providers who agree to work with designated populations or in areas that face
shortages of primary care, dental care, and mental health care providers.

Health Submission 2. Health Insurance Advocacy (Self-Advocate)

ISSUE: Families struggle navigating health insurance processes. Each family has to
become an insurance expert while trying to manage caretaking.

RECOMMENDATION: If DDS is the payer of the last resort, they must help exhaust
those resources.

Create a Health Insurance Advocacy unit within each regional center, which helps send
insurance requests/appeals/tracks denial letters on behalf of consumers/families. This
covers young families who are in the early years of adjusting to their child's disability
and seeking intervention services. Coordinates with service coordinators. DDS must
adequately fund these experts, and reimburse $100,000 per position, and written in law
measure for reimbursement to keep pace with inflation.

Each Health Insurance Company (including Medi-Cal) operating within the state must
set up a direct lines and specialized representatives for the Regional Centers to call.

Having experts who understand the routine would streamline the process, and really
improve the quality of life for families.

Health Submission 3. Respite Worker Give Lifesaving Help (Family Advocate)

ISSUE: Respite Workers and other direct support staff being told they are not allowed to
give clients lifesaving emergency medications, such as Epi-pens. Respite workers are
not being informed they have the right to volunteer to give lifesaving pre-dosed
medication and may be told information which makes their job feel at jeopardy if they
chose to save the client's life.

RECOMMENDATION: Coordinate with the California Emergency Medical Services
Authority and any other departments necessary to make the law CLEAR that respite
workers (and all-over direct support workers employed to be) in a supervision role of a

52



person with an ID/DD can volunteer to administer pre-dosed time sensitive layperson
designed lifesaving medications such as Epi-Pens.

Workers must be informed of their rights to provide such medications, without risk to
their jobs. "Save the client's life, over liability concerns" must be the creed. Form with
signature for all workers informing them of their right to volunteer.

Change the insurance law to prevent Liability Insurance Companies from penalizing
service agencies who have workers who volunteer to give lifesaving medications.

Look to following the legal path that the school took in the Education code to be exempt
from California Code, Health, and Safety Code - HSC § 1797.197a.

Health Submission 4. Medical System Navigation (Family Advocate)

ISSUE: Support navigating the medical system for adult regional center clients and their
caregivers. Medical systems like Kaiser Permanente don't seem to be designed to
assist members with developmental disability who can't advocate for themselves.
Especially if they are non-verbal and have fear entering the medical office in person. It
has been challenging to understand or know the polices to get IHSS forms signed for
example. Or to even know if one's medical referral to a third party has been denied and
get denial letter/email.

RECOMMENDATION: My solutions to get support in navigating the medical system is
to be offered a "medical social worker" to help assist which steps to take for the regional
center client / caregiver to have access to medical care and forms to be fill out. Also, to
help solve challenges.

Health Submission 5. Stop Recertification (Family Advocate)

ISSUE: County social services requires a re-certification for Medi-Cal benefits. Every
year we have to request a DDS waiver to qualify. Our son was born with a genetic
condition that will last his entire life, (Trisomy 21 Down Syndrome).

RECOMMENDATION: The solution to end yearly recertification to qualify for Med-iCal
services is to mark my son’s condition T21 Down Syndrome as a lifelong condition that
does not require recertification on a yearly basis for Medi-Cal and to have this as a
federal recognition too.

This way we do not have to spend time filling out forms and waiver and speaking to
many different people at social services to have a waiver provided. It is time consuming
and wastes resources.

Note: A similar effort was supported by SCDD this year in AB 1977 (Ta), which
would have addressed recertification for Autism within private insurance.

53


https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billTextClient.xhtml?bill_id=202320240AB1977

Governor Newsom vetoed it with an explanation that it is not reasonable to
completely prohibit all evaluations.

Health Submission 6. Need Life Insurance Options (Family Advocate)

ISSUE: The lack of life insurance options to our disabled population. Trying to find life
insurance is like finding a needle in the haystack!

RECOMMENDATION: Make insurance companies give options for life insurance to the
disabled population.

Health Submission 7. Need Dental Providers (Family Advocate)

ISSUE: Disabled people also need good dental services and coverage in special
settings if they need to go under sedation for treatment due to the disability. Because of
the lack of service, individuals end up having more severe dental problems.

RECOMMENDATION: We need better dental pay for services for disabled patients, so
Doctors are willing to work with them and training to work with special needs.

Health Submission 8. Expand CalFresh Options (Professional)

ISSUE: | would like to expand on the California Bill (SB 628) to allow the disabled,
elderly, and those with medical conditions to be offered healthy meals by food delivery
services such as Hello Fresh, Mom's Meals, factor, Home Chef, etc. As a vendor
professional, | discovered that many disabled clients do not cook due to food insecurity,
cost, or education on dietary needs. | believe that SB 628 could be expanded to include
such services for individuals who have food insecurities. Hence, they would be able to
have nutritious meals delivered daily to their homes, which would improve the obesity
pandemic and chronic illnesses that relate to poor eating habits. Food is medicine;
therefore, providing healthy sources directly to the client will serve to reduce other
medical-related illnesses.

RECOMMENDATION: | believe in expanding on California Bill SB 628 to allow
individuals who have food insecurities access to third-party health meal services under
the Department of Social Services (DDS). This would enable Alta Regional Center
Clients (ACRC) clients to gain more access to healthy prepared meals daily that can be
covered by medical. Vulnerable populations such as people with disabilities need
nutritional education as to how food is medicine. The client can quickly get a referral
from durable medical equipment (DME) vendors who can be certified to provide a
referral under a health and safety code (356-399). This would solve the client's need to
have a caregiver who may not be fully aware of the client's dietary needs along with diet
restrictions. Expanding on this bill, SB 628 would improve the delivery systems for food

54



access. The third-party healthy meal services provider could have a tax break incentive
by using ACRC DME-vented small businesses, which would be cost-effective for
medical food programs such as Snap and CalAIM, which currently have limited
resources.

Health Submission 9. Dental School Training (Family Advocate)
ISSUE: The total lack of dental care for ID/DD individuals of all ages.

RECOMMENDATION: Require Dental Schools to train dental students to work with this
community. Require dental students with student loans to offer services to this
community as part of their repayment plan. Require the California Dental licensing
board to make a certain percentage of all licenses available ONLY if the certifications to
work with our community are met. Make it a law that the IDD/DD community MUST be
able to receive treatment by licensed/accredited/certificated dentist and hospitals. And
that TREATMENT is always the goal.

Health Submission 10. Life-Supporting Equipment (Family Advocate)

ISSUE: Individuals who rely on life-supporting equipment, like oxygen concentrators or
suction machines, need uninterrupted access to these devices.

Currently, if the equipment breaks and was already purchased item, the provider
doesn’t replace it immediately. The patient's doctor must submit a new prescription and
justification, which can take days to weeks to get insurance approval. During this time,
the patient may need to be hospitalized, putting their health at risk.

RECOMMENDATION: A law should require service providers to offer temporary
equipment immediately when life-supporting devices break. Insurance companies must
fund this temporary equipment to ensure patients receive the necessary support without
delay.

Health Submission 11. Specialized Waiting Rooms (Family Advocate)

ISSUE: | am certain | can speak for the majority of the individuals that reside in this our
lovey state of California when | say that the public health care system does not meet our
expectations of reasonable wait time limits when it comes to attending appointments at
our local clinics. Parents often attend appointments that they have been waiting for
months and on top of that we have to wait in a waiting room for at times more than an
hour. If you ever encounter an autistic child at a waiting room, you will see how their
behavior is much different from a neurotypical child. You will also notice the behavior of
a parent to an autistic child is also different. Waiting, excessive talking, lights, noise and
expected to be seated can all be overstimulating and overwhelming for an autistic brain.

95



There is also a concern for autistic individuals who elope. Eloping children can easily
access automatic doors causing a safety concern. If you see an eloping child, you will
most likely also see a parent running after them. As a parent to a special needs child, |
am continuously worried about my child's safety not to mention how exhausting it can
be to be in a waiting room running after my child for an hour while also supervising
another child. Having no waiting rooms specifically for special needs individuals is a big
problem for them and their families. While other parents discipline their child with words
of 'stay seated' expecting that in return, other parents do not have that option. We both
deserve to be in a space waiting for health care where we have a bit of tranquility and
feel our children safe. Why should receiving health care have to be twice as hard for
special needs families?

RECOMMENDATION: Specialized waiting rooms for special needs individuals. Every
clinic should be responsible for providing a safe, low sensory, enclosed, quiet waiting
area for special needs individuals and their families.

Health Submission 12. Follow Medi-Cal Policy (Professional)

ISSUE: Medi-Cal Managed Care Organizations are not mandated by the State of
California to follow the same Process and Payment Allowable outlined in the Medi-Cal
Formulary for the members prescribed medical supplies as it is with Medi-Cal. All
Managed Care Organizations have been established to manage the Medi-Cal Benefit
but are not following Medi-Cal Policy as they are permitted to make up their own
Process and Allowable per product. One example is Anthem Blue Cross that modified
their payment allowable(s) to a Commercial Plan allowable in 2018 and does not allow
for State required Sales Tax. Their allowable(s) and lack of Sales Tax payment has
remained unchanged since 2018.

RECOMMENDATION: All Managed Care Organizations must be mandated to follow all
Medi-Cal Policy, Procedure and Allowable(s) as outline in the Medi-Cal Formulary.

Health Submission 13. Free Art Sessions (Family Advocate)
ISSUE: Frustration and low self esteem

RECOMMENDATION: | would love to see free, weekly art sessions just for the
autistic/disabled community. Our children (and adults) have so many frustrations and
structured but free-lance style art sessions could provide a creative outlet without peer
pressure from being with typical kids who can generally follow instructional art at a
much faster pace.

I've considered approaching our local Park and Rec dept. It could be so beneficial for
them to have the opportunity to spend time with peers just doing fun, creative, enriching
activities. Thank you for your consideration of this possibility.

56



Health Submission 14. Expand DME Beyond Home Use (Self-Advocate)

ISSUE: The idea that to get durable medical equipment for people who have a disability
they must use it only in the home. Most common homes are not always wheelchair
accessible for wheelchairs to be used in homes.

RECOMMENDATION: Get rid of the idea that durable medical equipment is only for
home use.

Health Submission 15. No Denial of Therapy (Family Advocate)

ISSUE: Health insurance companies can deny coverage for residential therapy from
mental health patients and youths of California

RECOMMENDATION: All forms of health insurance should not be allowed to deny
therapy of any kind.

Human Services

Human Services Submission 1. Service Coordinator Reimbursement
(Family Advocate)

ISSUE: DDS only reimburses regional centers $34,000 per service coordinator. Leading
to regional centers not being able to offer competitive salaries for qualified employees.

The Service Coordinator case ratio is too high, and turnover is too high, leaving many
clients cycling through workers, and sometimes without a service coordinator at all.

RECOMMENDATION: DDS must reimburse regional centers $100,000 per service
coordinator, and a percentage formula must be put in place to account for future
inflation. High turnover is wasting training time and causing redundancy. Service
Coordinators must be an investment.

Penalize DDS Executive level salaries every year this is not corrected.

57



Human Services Submission 2. Respite Worker Pay (Family Advocate)

ISSUE: Many respite workers only make $0.81 above minimum wage. There is a hiring
crisis, families are going without services. Many families must tip employees out of
pocket to keep them from leaving for better paying jobs (Per 2021 State Audit Report-
DDS & Respite). This means wealthier families have more access to services. Services
should be available to all, especially those in poverty.

RECOMMENDATION: Ref- INITIAL STATEMENT OF REASON, TITLE 17 DIV 2. DDS,
CHPT 3 COMMUNITY SERVICES (Google "DDS Initial reason Respite"). Per the initial
statement of reason “Maintaining a wage for respite workers above the minimum wage
is essential to recruit and retain individuals who are willing to assume the degree of
responsibility required, have the ability to provide optimal level and quality of service,
and accept the sporadic/intermittent work schedule inherent in the delivery of respite
service.”

Per statement, in 1989 Respite workers were given $0.81 above the $4.25 minimum
wage. That is 19% over minimum wage! Reform respite worker and other direct support
worker positions, to be a percentage over the fast-food worker minimum wage. The law
needs the percentage in writing, not an amount!

For the love of all that is good, do NOT ban tipping either, as DDS declined to state
whether it was allowed in the state auditor's report. That's the worst solution here. Pay a
fair wage, this concern will be resolved.

Human Services Submission 3. Regional Center Board Meetings
(Community Member)

ISSUE: There should be a uniform set of state law requirements applicable to the public
meetings of the regional center board of directors and its committees. This would apply
to how meeting notices and meeting materials are made available to the public. It
should also cover requiring all such meetings to be public. There should be a wide
range of practices covering how regional centers publicize meetings and make
materials available.

RECOMMENDATION: Using Bagley Keene as a foundation, there should a legislation
adapted for the regional center board and committee meetings. All meetings should be
noticed and at the regional center website. All materials should be put up on the
website. All materials introduced during the meeting should be posted at the start of the
meeting - similar to how the State Council posts new material for the full Council
meeting. It should be prohibited to have closed committee meetings. All board meeting
packets should be posted and retained at the regional center website. Some regional
centers have years of board packets posted. Alta has not a single posted board packet,
only the minutes.

58



Human Services Submission 4. Family Court Services (Self-Advocate)

ISSUE: Family Court System delaying services for our families due to the ongoing
parental disputes with services being affected.

RECOMMENDATION: Bill Proposal: Family Services Continuity Act
Section 1: Purpose

To ensure that beneficiaries of county and/or regional services, involved in Family Court
matters, can continue to receive the necessary support from established professionals
and community resources, regardless of their residence within the county their case is
being heard.

Section 2: Definitions
Beneficiary: Any minor or adult receiving services under Family Court jurisdiction.
Recipient: The individual designated to receive services as per diagnosis.

Service Providers: Includes teachers, doctors, therapists, and providers/educators of
any extracurricular activities.

Section 3: Continuity of Services

Beneficiaries residing in counties where Family Court matters are being heard must
follow the recipient services, to which they receive such services, to ensure continuity
and effectiveness of their care.

Service providers must maintain their involvement with the beneficiary, regardless of
any changes in the beneficiary's caregiver/parent resolution/mandates with Family Court
Services.

Section 4: Judicial Responsibilities

Courts are required to familiarize themselves with each case individually and the
recipient's service individualized program plan.

The judicial system must expedite the county transfer of any cases using concise, clear,
and timely information to minimize delays in their service provision.

Section 5: Community Resources

Community resources should adapt to follow the beneficiary within 60 days of any
relocation or change in service requirements, where feasible.

Timely transition is critical to ensure uninterrupted access to services and support for
the recipient’s well-being.

Section 6: Documentation and Monitoring

59



Discussions regarding caregiver planning during Individualized Program Plan (IPP)
meetings must be documented.

Any regression or denial of any or all services by caregivers or parents should also be
recorded to monitor compliance and service delivery.

Section 7: Implementation

This Act shall take effect immediately upon passage to ensure that beneficiaries receive
timely and consistent services throughout the Family Court process.

Effective advocacy for those with disabilities necessitates addressing discrimination in
all its manifestations, including the particular difficulties encountered by those who find
themselves at the junction of many discriminatory systems.

Human Services Submission 5. Conservatorship Alternatives
(Family Advocate)

ISSUE: (Translated from Spanish) There should be alternatives to Conservatorship:
mechanisms for assisted decision making rather than a full or complete power of
attorney-to permit parents of children with severe disabilities that are not able to make
decisions for themselves.

RECOMMENDATION: Parents' Rights Act for Persons with Disabilities to Manage
Alternative Decisions to Conservatorship. Provide parents with legal tools to manage
decisions on behalf of their children. Protect the autonomy and rights of people with
severe disabilities who cannot express their will. Allow parents to act as legal
representatives in making specific decisions (health, education, and finances.)

There is a law on alternatives to conservatorship for people with disabilities who have
the ability to express their will, but people who cannot express their will have been left
out of this project or rather this law.

Human Services Submission 6. No Payee in SDP (Self-Advocate)

ISSUE: Regional Center clients who use self-determination should not have use a
payee.

RECOMMENDATION: | think that the money should go directly to the client if they
express a desire to pay for their services directly. As a Regional Center client who lives
independently and manages his own money it's a disappointment that | have to use a
payee if | want to be in the self-determination program. The companies that manage my
money can charge over a hundred dollars a month to pay each service provider. | am
fully capable of keeping track of my money and ensuring that my two service providers
get paid on time. Additionally, | am willing to learn the necessary information about how

60



to prepare payroll for my employees. While | understand that California may be looking
out for our best interest by having us use financial service providers, | believe that
people who want should be able to get a check from the state to pay their providers
directly. This will ensure that we will have access to the services we need and can
change services without having to wait for someone to write the checks. While |
understand that some clients might blow their budget, | believe people should be given
the opportunity to manage their own money with the knowledge that they could run out
of money and learn from the consequences of their actions.

Human Services Submission 7. Data on Unmet Needs (Family Advocate)

ISSUE: Data on unmet needs is critical to developing adequate service provider
networks and reducing disparities but is not collected.

| am a member of the DDS Regional Center Performance Measurement workgroup
which created the new statewide IPP template that will be required starting January
2025. | and other workgroup members advocated that the IPP template should include a
section to identify unmet needs, meaning vendored services that are desired but not
available to the individual due to a lack of providers. However, an unmet needs section
was not included in the IPP template. This vital data is needed to identify disparities
experienced by racial and ethnic groups, and high needs individuals, who are often
underserved or excluded in the entrance criteria of vendored providers (see title 17
section 56714), and to provide regional centers with the information they need to
develop an adequate service provider network.

RECOMMENDATION: Amend the IPP section of the Lanterman Act to include a
provision that the IPP template shall include a section that identifies the unmet needs of
the individual, and if possible, measures the needed hours of service and location of
service delivery.

This data, compiled across a given region, would form the foundation of market
research, which in the private sector motivates entrepreneurs to start new businesses.

Note that the IPP Agreement and Signature Form, under “Acknowledgements” requires
the individual to acknowledge that they have “discussed and shared information about
any needs [they] have right now or in the future with [the] service coordinator,” but does
not at present memorialize or quantify that data. See https://www.dds.ca.gov/wp-
content/uploads/2024/07/Enclosure B _Individual Program_ Plan_Agreement _and_Sign
ature _Form.pdf.

61


https://www.dds.ca.gov/wp-content/uploads/2024/07/Enclosure_B_Individual_Program_Plan_Agreement_and_Signature_Form.pdf
https://www.dds.ca.gov/wp-content/uploads/2024/07/Enclosure_B_Individual_Program_Plan_Agreement_and_Signature_Form.pdf
https://www.dds.ca.gov/wp-content/uploads/2024/07/Enclosure_B_Individual_Program_Plan_Agreement_and_Signature_Form.pdf

Human Services Submission 8. SDP Regional Center Flexibility
(Family Advocate)

ISSUE: (Translated from Spanish) Empowering Self-Determination consumers to
choose the regional center they feel best fits their needs. This bill should also include
awareness raising, DDS will develop regulations or directives or policies to empower
consumers to choose regional centers.

RECOMMENDATION: Though there is no law on this, individual circumstances may
warrant an exception to the geographic boundaries that regional centers have. There is
no provision in the law that specifically prohibits a consumer from obtaining service
coordination from one regional center while living within the catchment area of another
regional center.

Note: This year SCDD supported SB 1281 (Menjivar) which would have required
statewide standardized processes and procedures for the Self-Determination
Program to address the issue of inconsistency in service delivery. Though this bill
passed both houses, it was vetoed by Governor Newsom with the explanation
that this issue be addressed through the current work Master Plan on
Developmental Disabilities.

Human Services Submission 9. Regional Centers Provide DDS Services
(Family Advocate)

ISSUE: Inequality in regional center service delivery system.

RECOMMENDATION: This law would require that all of California’s regional centers
provide all the services listed in the DDS service codes, at a minimum. Additional
services could still be provided by region.

See note above re: SB 1281 (Menjivar)

Human Services Submission 10. Include Regional Center Employees as
Mandated Reporters (Professional)

ISSUE: Mandated Reporting Requirements

RECOMMENDATION: Include specific reference to Regional Center Employees in the
Penal Code 11165.7 definition of "mandated reporters."

Note: Current law already provides that at regional centers, service coordinators
and vendors are mandated reporters. See:
mandated reporting requirements flow chart _-sir-.pdf (altaregional.org).

62


https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=202320240SB1281
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.altaregional.org%2Fsites%2Fmain%2Ffiles%2Ffile-attachments%2Fmandated_reporting_requirements_flow_chart_-sir-.pdf&data=05%7C02%7CVeronica.Bravo%40scdd.ca.gov%7C72ea967be36f4b84ec8c08dcefa4d1d8%7C0235ba6b2cf04b75bc5dd6187ce33de3%7C1%7C0%7C638648738388412503%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=fBLQetZ6XP%2BDd3WYHcGacI5IGlaNDXzZm6ii6QddE3Y%3D&reserved=0

Human Services Submission 11. Training and Pay for Caregivers (Family
Advocate)

ISSUE: | would like to see all caregivers to be required to take a course with certification
before being allowed to care for our developmentally disabled or any disabled person in
need of daily or long-term care.

As far as | know, there is no specific training available for caregivers to determine if their
personality is even suitable for such an important job. Needless to say, their background
needs to be checked first.

RECOMMENDATION: More oversight and stricter selection. More pay to attract
qualified people.

Human Services Submission 12. Make ABLE Account Contributions Tax
Deductible (Family Advocate)

ISSUE: That contributing to an Able account is not tax deductible at the state level.
These accounts are specific for disability related expenses. In California you can have
up to $100,000 in a CalABLE account without it impacting your public benefits (e.g.
medical or SSI). However, the state does not have a tax benefit for contributing to those
accounts although they are fundamental to the long-term wellbeing of people with
disabilities. | am funding one for my 6-year-old son to help me have peace of mind for
his care when | can no longer care for him. | have read that other states have this
provision, and it seems like a win-win to me to help incentivize families to save.

RECOMMENDATION: That contributing to an CalABLE account is not tax deductible at
the state level. These accounts are specific for disability related expenses. In California
you can have up to $100,000 in a CalABLE account without it impacting your public
benefits (e.g. medical or SSI). However, the state does not have a tax benefit for
contributing to those accounts although they are fundamental to the long-term wellbeing
of people with disabilities. | am funding one for my 6-year-old son to help me have
peace of mind for his care when | can no longer care for him. | have read that other
states have this provision, and it seems like a win-win to me to help incentivize families
to save.

Human Services Submission 13. Independent Review of SDP Spending
Plans (Family Advocate)

ISSUE: (translated from Spanish) Equity in Self Determination Services

RECOMMENDATION: That DDS hire an agency to review spending plans. That the
agency that accepts control be knowledgeable about the 5 principles of self-
determination. That the issue of self-determination be subject to specific laws that

63



clients are free to hire their own supervisors and providers and that the Regional Center
and the people who approve spending plans not be employees of regional centers. To
avoid retaliation against clients for their parents' advocacy.

Human Services Submission 14. Lived Experience in Board Representation
(Self-Advocate)

ISSUE: Manipulation of Boards and Committees to advance status quo agendas that do
not represent the interest I/DD Populations and their families at large.

RECOMMENDATION: Board Composition will be updated to reflect background,
culture and ethnicity to ensure that boards are composed of a diverse community of
individuals with similar education and experience to support equitable progress and
change. When the board or committee is comprised mainly of educated white
professionals. Persons of color from the 1/DD or parents that do not have the acumen to
interpret the information, or actions presented the effort becomes unbalanced. While
individuals may be well meaning, lived experience trumps expressed concern.

Human Services Submission 15. Better Pay/Programs for People Who Use
Wheelchairs (Family Advocate)

ISSUE: For day programs they want a better pay because it's a very exhausting daily
job to care for clients with wheelchair with all the need of transportation and transfers
some are diaper changing and just more need to care for. With a better pay they will
open door for wheelchair bound clients.

RECOMMENDATION: We need better Day programs that include every disability like
clients in wheelchairs not just ambulatory day programs should get some kind of help to
purchase wheelchair accessible vans to help the special needs population.

Human Services Submission 16. Better Ways to SCDD, DRC, RC Info
(Self-Advocate)

ISSUE: There are too many decisions about our lives that are made without us.
Government agencies, non-profits, and individuals get laws passed, report their data,
and change our benefits and regional center rights without any notice to us. We do not
get information about regional center services when we apply. We are not told about the
SCDD, Disability Rights California, or the regional center system.

RECOMMENDATION: At the very least, all regional centers and protection and
advocacy offices must provide online newsletters or listservs to anyone who is affected
by the laws they propose and the services they provide. Whenever someone applies for
Special Education or regional center services, they should be given the choice to

64



receive newsletters or emails from the SCDD, regional centers, and any agency or non-
profit that receives state and federal funding and lobbies in our name.

Human Services Submission 17. Use Unspent Dollars for Relocation
(Family Advocate)

ISSUE: As a parent of a young adult with a developmental disability who lives in a rural
region of California, | know how difficult it is obtaining appropriate services for my loved
one. Families in rural communities throughout California face disproportionate financial
and geographical hurdles in helping their loved ones to actualize their most fulfilled,
purpose-driven lives through appropriate person-centered plans as part of the Self-
Determination Program (SDP).

Rural families are disproportionately financially taxed, because they strive for years to
find anything that will help their loved ones, often when they are able, resorting to
paying out-of-pocket expenses to secure anything that may help, often times for items
or services that are disallowed by the regional centers. For families who have no
resources, often the more likely scenario in poorer counties, like Plumas and Sierra
Counties, children and adults with disabilities are just frankly unserved. Given that last
Regional Center returned millions of dollars in unused plan monies, this is a betrayal of
those citizens who are most vulnerable.

RECOMMENDATION: | wish for these underserved families living in rural areas, who
face unique geographic, cultural, and financial impediments, to be able to set aside
multiple years of prior unused, approved SDP spending plans for participant relocation
to geographic areas known to be centers of excellence for services delivery.

Often, we as families hear from regional centers that we just need to find people who
can provide a proxy of what is needed, someone who can be trained, etc. This is not an
appropriate response. We either need to be free to move to areas where there are
robust services, often in areas where housing is not financially tenable otherwise, or
have the State spend considerable resources to bring these providers to us. The
alternative is continued years spent by individuals and their families in rural California,
treading water, at considerable cost of time and the family's resources, trying to fit into
the State's version of their service delivery model, when it really should be the other way
around.

65



Human Services Submission 18. Age-Appropriate Conservator Language
(Family Advocate)

ISSUE: When | filled out paperwork for Conservatorship for my son who is a young
adult many of the questions, we’re referring to a senior citizen and it was hard to filter
out what questions that were relevant and which weren’t. When it was all done, my
proof of Conservatorship was two typed 8 1/2 x11 sheets of paper.

RECOMMENDATION: There should be separate forms for young people and seniors
getting Conservatorship papers drawn up. Once you have Conservatorship you should
receive a wallet size card (like a credit card) stating the person’s name and that they are
a conserved adult. This would be so much easier to show when needed like at doctor’s
offices, for adult programs, etc.

Human Services Submission 19. 3-Minute Wait Times on Phones
(Professional)

ISSUE: Phone call wait times and holds take a very long time and no human is
available.

RECOMMENDATION: Ensure availability of human person within 3 minutes of phone
hold time in any government office. This will keep the faith of the people in reaching out
to any state or federal office for getting help or assistance with their concerns.

Human Services Submission 20. Comply with Timeframes
(Family Advocate)

ISSUE: Vendorization process is 45 days and it’s been a year no response | have been
paying out my pocket for insurance most of the time and | don’t understand.

RECOMMENDATION: Vendorization number approval.

Human Services Submission 21. Transitioning to Adult Independence
(Family Advocate)

ISSUE: It should be automatic that each individual remains safe and have a seamless
transition to self-sufficiency as they become an adult. There is a disconnect when it
comes to transitioning from a parental household and a death of a parent.

RECOMMENDATION: More programs.

66



Human Services Submission 22. Evaluate RC Providers for Efficacy
(Family Advocate)

ISSUE: Abuse, neglect, incompetency, and unsafe conditions describe the problem for
individuals in the state of California who are or should be receiving services from DDS
and the $14.1 billion budget.

RECOMMENDATION: Require all DDS programs and regional center services to be
evaluated for efficacy by outside evaluation companies that can demonstrate no conflict
of interest and who are qualified to conduct evaluation using methodologies that hold up
to peer review.

Human Services Submission 23. Discount Sports Activities
(Family Advocacy)

ISSUE: Funding for recreational sports for children with disabilities.

RECOMMENDATION: There should be discounts for recreational sports packages so
children with disabilities can participate without having the financial hardship.

Human Services Submission 24. Supported Living Services for Adults Living
with Aging Family (Family Advocate)

ISSUE: Adult disabled children (sometimes referred to as child, below) who are in need

of SLS Services, cannot be living at home when receiving these services. (I'm assuming
the premise is that parents who reside with their disabled children are expected to care

for them and therefore the SLS Service is not "yet" needed.)

This creates many problems as now, an aging caregiver who may be on the brink of
being physically unable to care for the adult disabled child - Age 22+, now needs to find
a separate housing location for their child before SLS services can begin. Housing is
extremely hard to find. Yes, group homes exist, but for a child who is unable to care for
themselves, often times, choice is taken from them in terms of who they live with, where
they live, and who their caregivers are, (in other words, not person centered).
Otherwise, if one is seeking to live in an apartment, short supply housing vouchers have
to be applied for. Apartments aren't readily available with ADA considerations such as
needing accessible ramps, larger doorways, larger bathrooms, and wider hallways.
ADU's can be built in some cases, or a 2nd home can be purchased, but both scenarios
require most people to dip into much needed retirement or caregiving savings. Finding
housing and caregiving is a huge task that aging parents face in their later fragile years,
all while their child still needs to be cared for.

RECOMMENDATION: Allow SLS services to be provided to adult disabled children
living with parents age 65+ who live in owned homes. This allows parents to slowly back

67



away from the day-to-day responsibilities of caring for adult disabled children and gets
the child used to being cared for by someone else, while remaining in a familiar
environment. In addition, it alleviates the need to find other housing which can be
difficult to find. Additionally, if the house is one that has been used as a primary
residence for both the parent and the child, upon the parents passing, the child (or
representatives of the child) can apply for a parent/child exclusion of property tax
reassessment under Prop 19, passed by voters in 2020. This may keep the costs of
staying in the home lower for a child who may be relying on social security income as
their primary source of income.

No longer can children (disabled or typical) inherit real property from a parent without
reassessments unless the exclusion is applied for.

(Succession plans must be documented and legal advice may be sought for passing
down housing.)

Education

Education Submission 1. Exceptions from Special Ed Permit for Substitute
Teachers (Family Advocate)

ISSUE: The current rule requiring substitute teachers to have a Special Education
Permit after 20 days in a special education classroom is hindering the quality of
education for students with special needs. In a time of teacher shortages, this rule is
particularly problematic. My daughter's class provides a perfect example: their beloved
teacher is on maternity leave, and they've found an exceptional substitute who has
invested time and energy into learning each student's individual needs and routines.
However, due to the 20-day limit, this valuable substitute must leave the class, forcing
students to adjust to yet another new teacher, disrupting their learning and emotional
well-being. This rule should be amended to allow qualified substitute teachers to
continue supporting students with special needs, ensuring greater consistency and
continuity in their education.

RECOMMENDATION: To address the issue of frequent substitute teacher turnover in
special education classrooms, the current policy should be revised. Either the 20-day
limit for substitute teachers without a Special Education Permit should be extended, or
exceptions should be made to the certification requirement for substitutes who have
demonstrated a high level of competence and experience in supporting students with
special needs. Additionally, the state could invest in a truncated professional
development program that substitute teachers can complete to enhance their
knowledge and skills in special education, providing an alternative pathway to qualifying
for extended classroom time.

68



Education Submission 2. Addressing Gaps in Services (Family Advocate)

ISSUE: The State needs to provide clear guidance on IEP implementation when there
are gaps in services. As we saw during covid, there were many who were unable to get
the services their IEPs clearly outlined. Years later, the schools are still struggling with
provider shortages, and many are not able to implement IEP services. And parents and
guardians of these students are being left in the dark as to what services they are (or
are not) receiving that are listed in IEPs.

RECOMMENDATION: The State should have clear expectations for school districts of
what reasonable gaps in services are, and when and how families should be informed
about team changes, and what rights families have when services are unable to
provided due to lack of staffing. | suggest schools must send a notice to families within 5
business days if there is going to be a prolonged pause in services, for instance due to
the speech therapist quitting, an estimate of when services will begin again, and a plan
on how to make up the missing session times.

Education Submission 3. Protect Non-Verbal Autistic Students
(Family Advocate)

ISSUE: (Translated from Spanish) The problem this bill would address is the
vulnerability of nonverbal children with autism to abuse in schools. Unable to verbally
express situations of abuse, these children are at greater risk of suffering abuse that
goes unnoticed. Currently, there is a lack of specific preventative measures, adequate
training of school staff, and a legal structure that clearly defines responsibilities in cases
of neglect or abuse. In addition, there are no effective oversight mechanisms to ensure
compliance with protection protocols.

RECOMMENDATION: Proposed Bill: Create a Preventive Protocol and Responsibility
for the Protection of Non-Verbal Children with Autism in Schools. According to my brief
research on the topic, there is no specific law in California that exclusively addresses
the abuse of non-verbal autistic children in schools and the liability for such acts.
However, laws such as the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA) and
Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act guarantee protections for students with disabilities,
including appropriate educational interventions and prevention of discrimination.

Education Submission 4. Triggers for Dyslexia Screening (Family Advocate)
ISSUE: Dyslexia diagnosis and supports

RECOMMENDATION: When testing is done for an IEP or any other educational
assessment and there is any data showing that there is a problem, the schools should

69



have to notify the parents of the findings and encourage them to seek professional help
with a diagnosis for dyslexia. Many parents are not made aware of this issue and the
children suffer because the parents think the learning disability is due to other diagnosis
like Autism etc. They do not want to spend the resources for the children and blame it
on the child.

Education Submission 5. Let IEP Students Participate in Graduation
(Professional)

ISSUE: Bill idea regarding education and the ability to walk in a graduation ceremony.

In 2019, | had a student named Pedro who was on an IEP since the 3rd grade and was
refused the right to walk in his high school graduation ceremony. Despite my efforts, he
was deemed a "non-grad" by my district due to credits and grades, and he was too
embarrassed to continue services ~ especially because he wouldn't be permitted to
walk with his class anyway. | hugged his Mom as she cried when she heard the news
and | stood by his side on graduation day. 4 years later, he died due to complications
with surgery on Christmas Day. | have been looking for a means to propose this as an
idea and dedicate it with his namesake.

What | saw with Pedro, and what | see with other districts, is that when students are
"non-grads" (e.g., they don't complete a requirement, get an "F" on one of the core
requirements) they are unable to walk until they complete the requirements.

As it is now, a student cannot walk until they complete the requirements (this is widely
practiced in all high schools in CA), and in Pedro's case, the shame and embarrassment
is so great - they don't want to go back.

RECOMMENDATION: Allow students in IEP to walk in high school graduation. What |
would really like to see in California is a law similar to Kevin's Law in Washington.
Basically, if a student is a "non-grad" and has an IEP, they are still able to walk in the
graduation ceremony and culminating activities with their same-aged peers and
complete the requirements afterwards in Extended School Year.

Note: In 2019 and now, state law allows students with disabilities to participate in
graduation ceremonies if they are awarded a certificate or document. Both
federal (IDEA) and state law allow students to continue to receive |IEP services
until the age of 22 years. The decision to award a certificate or document is
made by the IEP team of the student with the disability. It is difficult to determine
what happened in 2019 so that Pedro could not participate in his class ceremony.

70


https://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=28A.155.170
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=56391.&nodeTreePath=2.3.6.6&lawCode=EDC
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=56026.&lawCode=EDC

Education Submission 6. Schools Disclose What They Spend on Legal
Services (Family Advocate)

ISSUE: Transparency about the money that schools spend on defending themselves
from special education lawsuits and avoiding providing appropriate education to
students with disabilities by requiring all budgets and expenditures related to legal
compliance be posted in their website in a regular basis.

RECOMMENDATION: Open Checkbook: require all Local Education Agencies,
including dependent and independent charter schools, county offices of education, and
SELPAs, to post on their website an itemized and annotated ledger showing all
contracts, budgets, and expenditures of payments related to legal consultation,
representation, defense, litigation and compliance of special education policies,
programs or individual matters. Includes but not limited to payments to attorneys,
families and their attorneys via settlement, insurance payments, or otherwise, third party
experts and service providers, alternative dispute, mediators, and professional
development. Such open checkbook shall be updated in real time and no less frequently
than monthly. It shall be accessible, searchable, and able to be exported for use in
spreadsheet applications.

Education Submission 7. Allow IEPs During School Hours
(Family Advocate)

ISSUE: School IEP meeting scheduling. Parents and guardians of kids who have an
IEP, especially parents who both want to attend the IEP but find it hard to meet before
or after school hours - since meeting before or after school hours causes challenges
with dropping off kids, picking up kids, and finding childcare for during the IEP meeting.

RECOMMENDATION: If parents request than an IEP meeting be held during school
hours, the school should be required to get substitute teachers to cover for all teachers
who need to be at the IEP meeting.

Education Submission 8. Create “Forever Schools” of Learning
(Family Advocate)

ISSUE: Upon graduation from transition programs, many severely intellectually delayed
and disabled young adults find themselves with limited options for continued education
or meaningful engagement. While some day programs exist, they are often not suited
for individuals with more severe disabilities, leaving families struggling to find adequate
support.

RECOMMENDATION: The transition from school to adulthood is a critical period for
intellectually delayed and disabled individuals. Unfortunately, current day programs in
California often do not meet the educational and social needs of severely intellectually

71



delayed individuals once they age out of the education system. To address this gap, we
propose the creation of “Forever School,” a lifelong educational institution designed to
provide continued learning, development, and engagement for young adults with severe
intellectual delays.

Our mission is to ensure that these individuals have access to a structured, nurturing
environment where they can continue to grow intellectually, socially, and emotionally-
creating a true “forever” school environment that supports them throughout their lives.

Without ongoing educational and social engagement, these individuals can experience
stagnation in their development, isolation, and a decline in their overall quality of life. It
is crucial that we create a lifelong learning environment where these individuals can
continue to develop and thrive.

1. Create a comprehensive educational program designed specifically for the
needs of severely intellectually delayed individuals who have graduated from traditional
transition programs.

2. Develop individualized education plans (IEPs) that focus on lifelong
learning, communication skills, social development, life skills, and cognitive stimulation.

3. Provide a safe and structured environment that fosters personal growth,
social interaction, and meaningful engagement for students.

4. Offer additional services, such as physical therapy, occupational therapy,
and vocational training, to support the holistic development of each student.

5. Engage families and caregivers by offering them respite and support
services to help them navigate the challenges of caring for individuals with severe
intellectual delays.

Education Submission 9. Group Students in Smaller Groups by Age
(Family Advocate)

ISSUE: There are two problems that need/must be solved. My daughter is in a day
class through the county for children with multiple disabilities. The first issue, currently,
there are only two classes for children between the ages of 3-21 years old. The first
classroom is for children between the ages of 3-12 and the second classroom is for
children and adults between the ages of 12-21 years old. The issue is that we have a
large age range mixed in one classroom. These children/adults aren't participating with
children/adults within their age range. Additionally, it is incomprehensible how a teacher
teaches a 12-year-old and a 21-year-old the same "subjects".

The second issue, the classroom that is aged 12-21 years old is excluded from their
neurotypical peers. Currently, that classroom is located in an old high school that is no

72



longer used by children. Therefore, this classroom is isolated, marginalized and
excluded from society and other peers.

RECOMMENDATION: For Issue #1 - Instead of having two classes (3-12 and 12-21)
there should be at minimum 4 classrooms. They can be split up into ages 3-6, 6-12, 13-
17, and 18-21.

For Issue #2 - The county and or school district should be responsible and accountable
for providing proper education, facility, and inclusion for children and adult with multiple
disabilities. There should be a classroom in all the schools for children with such need. |
am not thinking these kids should be in the regular curriculum with the neurotypical
children/adult because most if not all are medically fragile and having intellectual
disabilities. However, in this day and age we should be offering something much better.

Education Submission 10. Adjust Attendance Requirements
(Family Advocate)

ISSUE: Students with intellectual and developmental disabilities often have more
medical needs than students with non-existent intellectual and developmental
disabilities. Why are they expecting to have the same attendance required when these
students often times have more medical services and appointments to attend to thrive?

RECOMMENDATION: As a parent, | believe it's unfair to have this same attendance
required for the neediest of students. This not only impacts education funding related to
average daily attendance but divides schools and caregivers who prioritize medical
needs. But without medical needs being addressed academics will not be as successful.

Education Submission 11. Faster Safety Solutions (Family Advocate)

ISSUE: Safety for children in schools that have an IEP especially for eloping (running
away off campus endangering themselves) be able to go above chain of command and
immediately get this handled like gates being fixed and 1 on 1 aids immediately.

RECOMMENDATION: That the district of the school approved this type of issue right
then in the moment presented for the safety of these children and others.

Education Submission 12. Cameras on Buses and In Classrooms
(Family Advocate)

ISSUE: I'd like to know my child is 100% safe in his bus and Special day Classroom for
special needs along with a lot of other parents.

RECOMMENDATION: We need to put cameras in the classrooms and buses of
individuals with delays.

73



Education Submission 13. Inform about Rights and Access to Evaluations
(Family Advocate)

ISSUE: Navigating the educational system can be challenging for parents, especially if
they're unaware of their rights or the support available for their children. If a school is
taking a dismissive approach to behaviors or academic support needs, it's important for
parents to understand their options and advocate effectively. Schools often do not
inform parents about their rights for evaluations, unless they are having an initial IEP
meeting, it is taking too long for a student to improve academically, or behaviors worsen
with time Often times they just provide an evaluation for speech to place student under
those criteria to make them eligible for special education services instead of providing a
comprehensive and psycho-educational evaluation unless parents request for such.
Charters as state funded should follow the same special education laws as Public
Schools

RECOMMENDATION: It should be mandatory for schools to provide families with
special education rights during enrollment or have a point of contact on the student
handbook on the disciplinary section since many of the behaviors might occur due to a
condition not diagnosed or identified.

Another solution could be connecting regional centers to schools in order provide
workshops or consultation services to support families who are interested to get
evaluations, |IEP process information. (It should be mandatory for Charter Schools)

Education Submission 14. Train on Inclusive and Least Restrictive
Environments (Professional)

ISSUE: Lack of appropriate supports and education for school leaders in creating
environments for inclusion. While CA has indicators for improving least restrictive
environment, school leaders are not equipped to support this work. They receive very
little or no training in their credential programs on special education and inclusive
environments. So much of creating inclusive environments ends up supporting all
students so this should be a key element to their training.

RECOMMENDATION: Require credential programs to incorporate robust knowledge in
inclusive environments and supporting all students in general education including those
with disabilities.

Education Submission 15. Cameras in Classrooms and Nurses’ Offices
(Professional)

ISSUE: Ensuring that our non-verbal clients, consumers, students, etc. are not abused
in anyway or taken advantage of.

74



RECOMMENDATION: Cameras in special education classrooms and in nurses' offices
where diapers are changed. even on playgrounds.

Education Submission 16. Require Proof of School Board Approval for
Litigation (Family Advocate)

ISSUE: Lack of representation of people with disabilities by school district boards. Lack
of accountability in the initiation of litigation against students with disabilities for denial of
services by school districts.

RECOMMENDATION: Require that the Office of Administrative Hearings obtain proof
from school administrators that the school board has approved litigation against children
with disabilities when a hearing request is before the Office of Administrative Hearings.

Education Submission 17. Truancy Laws Discriminate Against Students with
Disabilities (Family Advocate)

ISSUE: Current CA Education Code (13) 48260 (b) labels a student as
habitually truant/chronically absent once the absences reach 10% of the school year or
just 3 days of “unexcused” absences.

Currently there are ZERO provisions or exceptions for students with chronic health
conditions and or disabilities. As a result, said students are being labeled as habitual
truants due to chronic absenteeism and are paying very heavy consequences. The
families of said students are being forced into Truancy hearings, cps cases and even
being forced out of the public-school sectors like both of my sons!

According to the data collection site, California school dashboard in 2023- 587,635
(33.1%) of students with disabilities were labeled as chronically absent and family
thereon faced the consequences of said label. If you break down the data per individual
schools/districts you will find the numbers are absolutely alarming! Under suspension
rates students with disabilities are far more likely to be suspended than that of their
peers.

This policy has forced my son who is now 14 out of the public school system. | have
been forced to keep him home via homeschool (home based private school) and left
unable to work to support my family. When he was just 9/10 years old, he was
diagnosed with 9 different debilitating medical conditions that caused ALOT of
absences. As a result, my husband and | were forced to attend an attendance hearing
at the police station (WSPD) where we were surrounded by district employees and
police officers. | pleaded our case and there was not a dry eye in the room but, that did
not matter. Policy is policy and we were forced to remove my son from the district to

75



prevent the traumatic events that would follow, even though his absences were proven
to be directly related to his disabilities!

Flash forward to today and we are currently facing the same consequences with
our other son. Both of my sons have Epilepsy. My 13-year-old son whom we
currently face a dire situation with, has autism, epilepsy, chronic abdominal pain,
IBS and more. Due to his conditions, he is currently unable to be physically
present in the classroom on bad flair up days!

However, there are no exceptions to the attendance policy, and he is now also dubbed
a habitual truant. Both of my sons WANT to be at school! Especially, my 13-year-old
who is currently battling the chronically absent label. A student who is unable to attend
class with no predictability for reasons directly linked to their severe medical conditions
or disability should not have to labeled a truant! Currently, there are no distinctions
between a kid who skips school to smoke weed all day and a kid who has appointments
for cancer treatments or a student who has random flair up and becomes temporarily
bed ridden.

Currently the only thing available to these students is called “Home” hospital. Home
hospital is NOT appropriate for these situations, as it is 1. Temporary and only lasts up
to 14 days. During which time the student per the written policy is not allowed to attend
their regular classroom. Because there is currently NO language in ed code to protect
these students, they are forced into home hospital to mitigate the absences.

RECOMMENDATION: Change of language in ed code 48260 (d) would allow these
students access to their schoolwork via their Chromebook or other agreed upon
methods, during the unpredictable missed minutes (this portion is already in ed code)
but my recommendation would also change state law so that the school/ district is to
receive the average daily attendance (ADA) funds for a student with chronic medical
conditions/ disabilities (students with IEP’s or 504's) who are absent for reasons directly
related to their disability/chronic medical conditions. During which time a student

is to be allowed to be physically present when they are able!

This change of law would not prevent students with IEP's and 504's (students with
disabilities/chronic health conditions) the maximum equal access to their work,

school and peers but it would do it in a way where they are no longer punished and
targeted for their conditions AND brings in MORE funding to the school/district as long
as the student makes valid effort to do the class work. This would make appropriations
very happy as the average daily attendance (ADA) funding for schools are already
there; it just isn't being accessed because of 1 little sentence missing from ed code.

| am asking for your help in making this change! | began this fight in 2019. | had the

support of several Education departments of CA children's hospitals However, when
covid hit and the world shut down we had to pause our efforts. This is an urgent

76



situation for my own family as | am currently being forced to put my son on home
hospital even though it is in no way appropriate!!!

Employment

Employment Submission 1. Disability Etiquette Training (Family Member)

ISSUE: Many people in society are unaware of how to interact with individuals with
disabilities.

RECOMMENDATION: | envision a future where all new employees are required to
complete disability etiquette training as part of their onboarding process.

Employment Submission 2. Employment Trial Periods (Self-Advocate)

ISSUE: There are very few disability-to-disability mentor, and peer career opportunities!!
That give people with disabilities the opportunity to help other people with disabilities in
any capacities!! Often a lot of "neurotypical" people's perceptions of people with
disabilities are that our abilities & 1Q is that of an infant simply because of certain
behaviors/stimuli!!

RECOMMENDATION: My solution is this: Pass a bill in favor of people with disabilities
getting between 15- and 30-day trial in disability related professions!!

Employment Submission 3. Accept Proof of Disability (Self-Advocate)

ISSUE: Some jobs require a person to pass a board exam prior to employment and they
say they offer testing accommodations for their exam, but when it came to accepting the
documents, they deny them. They did not even look at the documents from school
psychologists or disability specialists. They said school disability professionals cannot
diagnose, so you may have a disability, but you don't know.

RECOMMENDATION: The solution is to make a law that forces entities to accept
documentation from school disability AND that people do not have to disclose great
details about their disabilities. The agency | encountered wanted great details and was
making a judgement themself if | had a disability.

77



Employment Submission 4. Allow Subminimum Wage (Family Advocate)

ISSUE: To allow sub-minimum wage employment once again for persons with
disabilities.

RECOMMENDATION: For politicians who changed the law to see that they took away
the opportunity to have a job-no matter how small- to those who want to work but can’t
meet the normal standards for employment. Change the law. Allow sub minimal wage
work for those who want it.

Note: This submission does not represent the view of SCDD nor the views of the
I/DD community as a whole.

Employment Submission 5. Create an Autistic ldea Journal (Self-Advocate)
ISSUE: Autistic unemployment
RECOMMENDATION: Solution: Research Proposal: Autistic Idea Journal

Elaboration: “Traditionally, influential erudition has emerged outside of traditional
institutions. In risk analysis, some autistics inadvertently break the law, out of repetition.
Some autistics, without malicious intent, harass others out of extreme emotional
distress, repetition and mental breakdown. The common good and negative
utilitarianism both call for society to give autistics an outlet for their abnormally high
creativity. Experiments need skin in the game.”
(https://www.researchgate.net/publication/382795247 Research _Proposal Autistic Ide
a_Journal).

Employment Submission 6. Allow Subminimum Wage (Family Advocate)

ISSUE: Since the state law changed in 2021 to no longer allow disabled people to
receive less than minimum wage, my daughter has worked 12 hours total. Not 12 hours
per week, not 12 hours per month, 12 hours TOTAL in 3 years. And it's not just my
daughter, it's the majority of the adults in her Goodwill support group. Goodwill actively
works to try to find jobs for them. The 12 hours they did find in 2023 was a convention
willing to use disabled adults to screen name tags as people went into their convention.
My daughter used to work at a restaurant 2 hours per day, rolling silverware into
napkins. The pay was about $3/hr, but she was proud of getting a paycheck and proud
of doing work to support her community. She was proud of teaching new adults who
came into the group the process of their work. The 3-4 disabled adults in her group now
have to figure out how they are going to kill time every day. Some days they do attend
classes that are supposed to give them "job skills", but the state is just wasting its
money for kids like my daughter. My daughter has cerebral palsy and ADHD, so she
has to be in an environment that stays basically the same every day in order to get any

78


https://www.researchgate.net/publication/382795247_Research_Proposal_Autistic_Idea_Journal
https://www.researchgate.net/publication/382795247_Research_Proposal_Autistic_Idea_Journal

work done, which basically means some sort of manual labor, but because of her CP,
she can go only go about 1/4 the speed of a typical person. The adults in her group are
about the same. With the current laws, any chance of her every working again is a pipe
dream.

RECOMMENDATION: It's possible that "job training" might be helpful to a few of the
adults at Goodwill and similar programs, but for a larger percentage, it's a waste of
money. The money would be much better spent either subsidizing actual work, for
example the rolling of silverware that my daughter used to do, have the restaurant pay
her minimum wage, but have the state reimburse the business for the delta between
what she earned, and her "actual value", as measured by what she could do in one hour
vs what a typical person can do, or go back to the former program, where disabled
individuals are paid less. If the state wants to continue to waste money, how about a
survey to find out if the change in law actually did any good. I'm sure you find in the
majority of the cases, all that happened is a source of pride and dignity was taken away
from these adults.

Note: This submission does not represent the view of SCDD nor the views of the
I/DD community as a whole.

Housing

Housing Submission 1. Housing After Hospitalizations (Family Advocate)
ISSUE: Housing for people with developmental disabilities after hospitalizations.

RECOMMENDATION: For San Diego Regional Center and Housing Authorities to work
together with all hospitals to ensure adequate post-discharge housing.

Housing Submission 2. Housing is a Right (Self-Advocate)
ISSUE: Homelessness.

RECOMMENDATION: It should be a law that people with intellectual and
developmental disabilities deserve to have some kind of roof over their heads for safety
reasons.

79



Housing Submission 3. Expand Low Income Housing Lottery Eligibility
(Family Advocate)

ISSUE: Housing for disabled adults and elderly

RECOMMENDATION: There should be a law that the housing for low income doesn't
ALL go to the farm workers. Cabrillo economic held a lottery for low-income housing
and after my disabled son was picked for it, we were told the lowest income housing
was only for the farm workers. They never specified this before the lottery and the
second level of low income was more than his SSI monthly amount. This should not
happen! There is no low-income housing available to those with SSI as their only
income. This should be illegal!

Housing Submission 4. Vouchers for Seniors with I/DD (Self-Advocate)

ISSUE: The lack of affordable housing for seniors who have disabilities and don’t have
income for traditional retirement housing.

RECOMMENDATION: Create vouchers for retirement communities so that seniors who
have developmental disabilities can have access to more senior living options.

Housing Submission 5. Create a Pilot Independent Living Community
(Self-Advocate)

ISSUE: Individuals with Disabilities: Persons who have a physical or mental impairment
that substantially limits one or more major life activities need access to more
independent living communities.

RECOMMENDATION: to establish a one-year pilot program in the State of California
that provides individuals with disabilities the opportunity to live independently in a
supportive community. This program aims to foster autonomy, enhance life skills, and
improve quality of life through structured roles, job opportunities, and money
management education.

Independent Living Community: A designated area within California where participants
will live, equipped with necessary facilities and support services.

Support Services: Services that include but are not limited to healthcare, counseling, job
training, and financial management education.

Establishment of the Pilot Program: Program Creation: The State of California shall
establish the Independent Living Community Pilot Program (hereafter referred to as "the
Program") to run for one year.

80



Location: The Program will be located in a designated area within California, chosen for
its accessibility, resources, and suitability for the community's needs.

Participants: Up to 100 individuals with disabilities will be selected to participate in the
Program. Selection criteria and procedures will be determined by the Department of
Social Services.

Community Living

Housing: Participants will be provided with housing in a tiny home community designed
to meet accessibility standards.

Basic Necessities: The Program will ensure that participants have access to food,
clothing, healthcare, and other essential services.

Support Staff: Trained support staff will be available to assist participants with daily
living activities and provide guidance as needed.

Transportation

Transportation Submission 1. Improve Accessible Transportation
(Self-Advocate)

ISSUE: | would like to see my local paratransit be on time. They need to get better at
getting customers to destinations and appointments on time. This is an ongoing problem
and many customers either customer's cancel or complain that they are late to work or
to the doctor. The issue is ride windows keep on getting changed by an auto on phones
letting them know and this is a problem. | am referring to Access a ride in my area of
Santa Clara County. It has been getting really bad. It affects many customers that use
the services.

RECOMMENDATION: | would like to see that there is a way to make this system with
the paratransit more organized and not have it be such a mess. My solution is maybe
there is a way that a grant bill can go in affect for more accessible vehicles for Access a
ride that can be donated and get more drivers trained and hired. More cut away vans,
more mini vans. More big vehicles that are accessible. This will help many customers to
get to destinations on time also the windows will stay the same and not change. Also,
instead of computers scheduling the rides to bring back live people to schedule them so
they are not going to the other side of town instead of where people drop off happens
first. | would love to see this help all the counties all over California.

81



Transportation Submission 2. Improve Accessible Transportation
(Family Advocate)

ISSUE: Transportation for disabled like ACCESS they take like two hours to take a
client to a destination when it should only take like 30 minutes ride, it's extremely
exhausting for clients.

RECOMMENDATION: Better pay for ACCESS employees because there is a lack and
because the pay is no good, they need to organize their routes better too.

Transportation Submission 3. Renew ID Cards Online (Family Advocate)

ISSUE: Ca ID not renewable online. If CA driver’s licenses are renewable online CA IDs
are not a majority of people who do not have driver’s licenses are disabled, not to even
mention seniors. This results in people who are able to drive not having to drive to
renew their licenses. However, people who do not drive need to find some sort of
transportation to renew their ID. | believe this is discrimination against the disabled.

RECOMMENDATION: The solution is for the state to mandate that CA IDs be available
to renew online. (Note: The Department of Motor Vehicles allows online renewal for ID
cards if there was no change of address, and it is not the first time applying for the ID.)

Note: Currently, CA IDs are renewable online.

Transportation Submission 4. Allow More Forms of Proof for ID
(Family Advocate)

ISSUE: Getting a California Identification

RECOMMENDATION: Have a form and picture from Alta Regional Center to present at
DMV and to social security. My daughter didn’t have a student identification. Her school
was Guiding Hands. | list her social security card. | do have her social security number.
It's been difficult. And | still don’t have a valid California identification.

Transportation Submission 5. Create Blue Curbs at Homes (Family Advocate)

ISSUE: | hope to solve parking issues for those who have access to disabled parking,
especially in front of their homes/ apartment building.

RECOMMENDATION: | would like for those who are given a blue placard/ disabled
parking access, be given a blue curb in front of their homes/ apartment building.

82



Civil Rights

Civil Rights Submission 1. Allow Conserved Right to Vote (Family Advocate)
ISSUE: Denial of right to vote if conserved

RECOMMENDATION: Revise the conservatorship laws to permit people who are
conserved to have the right to vote.

Civil Rights Submission 2. Annual Review of the Need for Conservatorship
Professional

ISSUE: | understand why conservatorship was created, parents, case manager, family
members and care providers were concerned about health and safety. My challenge to
all is, can there be a time limit? With deciding someone’s life decisions, it should not be
permanent. Can it be perhaps a probation period and maybe every year it's reviewed?

In my opinion, service providers should ask themselves these questions: Would | be ok
with having a conservatorship? Can | speak up for myself? Who would help me? Why

do | have a conservatorship?

RECOMMENDATION: A yearly probation period would benefit all. During the annual
meeting discuss is conservatorship needed? And if so why. I'm concerned that fawning
happens a lot of the time and the ones we serve feel trapped. It’s time to evolve. Like
the closing of state hospital, it’s time for a new change with our fellow human beings
and give back the ownership of their lives.

Civil Rights 3. Respect Medical Privacy (Self-Advocate)

ISSUE: Ageism and Alzheimer’'s/Dementia and Terminal illness under the age 65 and
HIPPA Rights being Violated along with Disrespect and Disregard! On almost a daily
basis my HIPPA Rights are violated by doctors, nurses, staff, first responders, police,
firefighters and the general public because of the lack of education about so many
diseases under the age of 65! One example is Early On-Set Alzheimer’s, | was
diagnosed with Early On-Set Alzheimer’s at 42 and Died of a Cardiac Arrest for 18
minutes at 43. Every day, people say to me, I'm too young to have “Alzheimer’s” I'm not
doing this for me. I’'m doing this for everyone like me who is either too scared or can’t

share their story anymore!

RECOMMENDATION: Sharing my story along with the factual medical records will help
others know they are not alone and will also help Educate All Medical professionals and
First Responder’s!

83



Federal Policy

Federal Submission 1. Enforce SSA Guidelines (Professional)

ISSUE: SSA beneficiaries harmed by Social Security. Harm may be both medical, such
stress exacerbating a pre-existing medical condition and/or financial, such as individuals
that are unable to meet their basic needs as a direct result of actions and/or a lack of
timely action by SSA, and/or by SSA Staff not following procedures set by the SSA.

RECOMMENDATION: The Social Security Administration needs a separate agency to
ensure they follow their own policy guidelines. This agency should be empowered to
administer sanctions and/or disciplinary action when violations to policy have been
egregious. This agency could also be responsible for making sure new policy is
administered in a uniform and timely fashion among the various local offices. Also, to
implement a uniform understanding of policy which is currently open to interpretation by
each individual office.

| see this as being similar to an audit that spot checks quality of service. But may also
be triggered by a report filed by a beneficiary. Similar to how someone may file a
complaint with the labor board.

Federal Submission 2. Enforce Volume Limits on TV Ads
(Council Member/Family Advocate)

ISSUE: "Structure," including an environment that is reasonably predictable and
consistent, is vital to the wellbeing of most people on the autism spectrum and other
people with I/DD. Despite the CALM Act (Commercial Advertising Loudness Mitigation
Act), which was enacted over a decade ago, virtually nothing has changed in the
perceived volume of commercial advertising. The volume of commercials today is still
far louder than the program. The jumps back and forth in broadcast volume that occurs
between advertising and program content is a source of needless anxiety for many
people on the autism spectrum, particularly those with acute hearing sensitivity.
Additionally, a recent study suggests millions of teens and young adults are at risk of
early hearing loss. They stand to benefit from addressing this problem as well.

RECOMMENDATION: The Audio Engineering Society (AES) proposed in 2018 (and
revised in 2023) loudness guidelines in the form of "AES71 -- Recommended Practice
Loudness Guidelines for Over-the-Top Television and Online Video Distribution."
Binding legislation requiring adherence and compliance with AES71 for all audiovisual
programming in California would address the problem.

84



Federal Submission 3. Amend ADA for Employment (Self-Advocate)

ISSUE: It is so hard to be hired with a position that you qualified for and meet all
requirements listed on the job posts. As soon as you go into your interview and your
disability is visible the employer finds a way and excuses to not hire the candidate. This
is a true disadvantage for people with disabilities. We are the largest minority group with
the employment statistics. We need to change this!

RECOMMENDATION: Top priority! We need an employment national rally day to

come and make a stance. Ask for change in the interview process that it is an open
process with employers. The required ADA Coordinator of 50 or employees, should be
designated to a person with a qualified disability, education, and experience. ADA
Amendment that all direct disability related agencies require 50% staff with disabilities at
all levels.

Federal Submission 4. Add Families to HUD Risk of Homelessness Scoring
(Professional)

ISSUE: Housing for our families with disabled children.

RECOMMENDATION: Currently the scoring used for risk of homelessness for various
housing agencies does not include a higher score for a parent caring for a disabled
child. We currently have families struggling to find housing with children that are
dependent and have multiple pieces of equipment. Expand the sec 811 HUD to include
not only people with disabilities but the caregivers of children under 18 with disabilities.

85



NOVEMBER 19, 2024

AGENDA ITEM 12.
VOTE ITEM

STATE COUNCIL ON DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITIES
State Plan Updates

This agenda item will focus on State Plan-related items, including a
presentation on the 2024 Program Performance Report (PPR) and updates on
the Cycle 47 Tribal Health RFP and the 2027-2031 State Plan Development
Process.

The Office on Intellectual and Developmental Disabilities (OIDD) requires State
Councils to prepare an annual Program Performance Report (PPR) outlining
outputs/outcomes/impacts accomplished in carrying out the activities of our
2022-2026 State Plan. The reports are due to the Office of Intellectual and
Developmental Disabilities (OIDD) each year for activities performed October 1
through September 30 of every federal fiscal year (FFY).

State Plan Committee Chair Michael Ellis and HQ Operations & State Plan
Manager Rihana Ahmad will present highlights of the 2023-2024 PPR
outputs/outcomes/impacts. The PPR presentation will be provided as a
handout at the Council meeting. Councilmembers will vote on whether to
approve the PPR.

Handout(s)
2024 Program Performance Report (PPR) presentation
May be handout(s) the day of the meeting.

Action Recommended
Approve the 2023-2024 Program Performance Report.

86



NOVEMBER 19, 2024

AGENDA ITEM 13.
INFORMATION ITEM

STATE COUNCIL ON DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITIES

2025 Council and Committee Meeting Dates and Adjournment

The Council’s next meeting date will be in person on January 21, 2025. A chart
of the 2025 Council and Committee meeting dates has been provided as a
handout for informational purposes.

Handout
2025 Council and Committee Meeting Dates

87



	2025-26 PolicyPriorities_TrackChanges.pdf
	PROTECTING AND ENHANCING CIVIL RIGHTS
	GUARANTEEING ACCESS TO EDUCATION AND EMPLOYMENT
	IDENTIFYING & PRIORITIZING EMERGING ISSUES IN THE I/DD COMMUNITY
	PROMOTING ACCESS TO QUALITY SUPPORTS IN THE COMMUNITY
	ENSURING SAFETY IN THE COMMUNITY
	IMPROVING HOUSING AND COMMUNITY LIVING

	There Should Be a Law_Report 2024_Final.pdf
	Voices from the Community
	Taking Charge… in Inclusion, in Justice
	Calling on Champions

	Terms Defined:
	Disclaimer:

	Public Safety
	Health
	Human Services
	Education
	Employment
	Housing
	Transportation
	Civil Rights
	Federal Policy




